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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Eleciric Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Electric Utility of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the
Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, fowa) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; Chapter 11 of the Code of lowa; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government duditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards and
provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 30, 2005, on
our consideration of the Utility’s internal contro} over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 5 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

éﬁ/fm@ L7

March 30, 2005
Dubuque, Iowa

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
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-1-

MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Our discussion and analysis of the Municipal Electric Utility (Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls,
lowa’s financial performance provides an overview of the Utility’s financial activities for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. Please read this information in conjunction with the
financial statements and the accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this
section.

Financial Highlights
e The Utility’s net assets increased as a result of this year’s operations. Total assets at year-

end were $89,839,916 and total liabilities were $24,568,083 resulting in net assets of
$65,271,833.

e Operating revenues increased 10.3 percent to $25,633,883 while operating expenses
increased 3.5 percent fo $22,732,913 in 2004.

« During the year, the Utility had operating income of $2,900,971. This compares to last year,
when the Utility had operating income of $1,281,559.

e The Utility delivered approximately 399,900,000 kilowatt hours (kWh) of electricity to its
retail customers in 2004 as compared to approximately 389,600,000 kWh in 2003.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the financial
statermnents, and the MD&A represents management’s examination and analysis of the Utility’s
financial condition and performance. The financial statements report information about the
Utility using full accrual accounting methods as utilized by similar entities in the private sector.

The balance sheets include the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provide information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors
(Liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Utility and
assessing the liquidity and flexibility of the Utility.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets present the results of the Utility’s
activities (revenues and expenses) over the course of the fiscal year and can provide information
about the Utility’s recovery of its costs. Retail rates to purchase electricity are based on rates
established by the Board of Trustees based on operating costs, debt service requirements, and
anticipated capital needs. A fundamental objective of this rate model is to provide adequate
revenue to cover all expenses.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Jowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

The statements of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operations, capital and related financing activities and investing activities. This
staternent provides answers to such questions as where did the cash come from, what was cash
used for, and what was the change in cash balances during the reporting period.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are
essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present
information about the Utility’s accounting policies, significant account balances and activities,
material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for
management, monitoring, and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheet Information

2004 2003
Current assets $18,331,471 $17,297,152
Capital assets, net 53,065,285 42,335,172
Other noncurrent assets 18,443,160 22.661,300
Total assets $89.839.916 $82.293.624
Current liabilities 5,960,342 4,065,142
Noncurrent liabilities 4,254,365 1,301,829
Long-term debt 14,353.376 15,121,379
Total liabilities $24,568.083 $20,488,350
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 42,826,327 34,420,776
Restricted 2,440,910 2,532,046
Unrestricted 20.004.596 24,852,452

Total net assets $65,271,833 $61.805.274
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Condensed Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2004 2003

Sales of electricity $24,344 499 $21,970,531
Other ‘ 1,289,385 1,280,148
Total operating revenues 25.633.884 23.250.,679
System operation and maintenance 13,744,661 12,848,397
Depreciation and amortization 2,514,784 3,097,329
Service and administrative 6,473.468 6.023.394
Total operating expenses 22.732.913 21.969.120

Operating income 2,900,971 1,281,559
Interest income 711,606 535,205
Other, net (146.018) (293.799)
Total nonoperating revenues

(expenses) 565,588 241,406

Change in net assets 3,466,559 1,522,965
Net assets, beginning of year 61,805.274 60,282.309
Net assets, end of year $65.271.,833 $61.805.274
Financial Analysis

Current assets increased 6.0 percent in 2004 primarily as a result of a decrease in cash and cash
equivalents for the purchase of capital assets totaling approximately $1,750,000 and an increase
in local fuel inventory of approximately $503,000 due to using approximately 2.1 percent more
coal than in 2003 and an increase in the average cost per ton over $1.43.

Other noncurrent assets decreased 18.6 percent in 2004 primarily due to investments made from
the 2003 revenue bond issue in the construction fund maturing and being used to invest in the
Council Bluffs 4 generation construction project. Other noncurrent assets also include the long-
term note receivable from the Municipal Communication Utility. The total outstanding balance
at December 31, 2004 was $3,093,090.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Jowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Current liabilities increased 46.6 percent in 2004 primarily as a result of the following: accounts
payable increased approximately $1,960,000 due primarily to power and transmission rent and
wind energy for 2004 of approximately $518,000; outstanding 2004 construction projects like
the Industrial Park Substation and 161 KV line costs of approximately $646,000; SCADA costs
of approximately $130,000, and warehouse construction costs of approximately $128,000.

Noncurrent liabilities increased 226.8 percent in 2004 primarily due to the $3,075,632 retainage
held on the long-term construction project of Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit 4, in which the
Utility is a 2.02 percent owner; and an increase of approximately $279,000 in accrued severance
that employees are entitled to receive upon retirement with 20 years of continuous service.

Long-term debt decreased 5.1 percent primarily due to the payment of principal and amortization
of discount of over $768,000 during 2004.

Sales of electricity increased 10.8 percent in 2004 primarily due to the impact of the general rate
increase effective January 2004 of approximately 8.8 percent. Sales for resale were also a
contributing factor to the total increase in sales of electricity. Sales for resale increased
approximately $213,000. Due to the market price of electricity being relatively high, the Utility
ran our local units resulting in excess generation available to sell on the market.

Other operating revenues increased 0.7 percent in 2004 primarily as a result of increased
interdepartmental rents of approximately $63,000 and a decrease in gas turbine rent of $53,000.
The increase in rent relates to a telephone system upgrade of approximately $28,000, computer
purchases of approximately $132,000, and approximately $142,000 for customer billing software
placed in service during 2003 which is owned by the Municipal Electric Utility and used by the
Municipal Gas, Municipal Water, and Municipal Communications Utilities.

System operation and maintenance increased 7.0 percent in 2004 primarily due to several factors.
As mentioned previously, due to the market price of electricity being relatively high, the Utility
ran our local units. The Utility used 6,600 tons of coal more than during 2003. This represents
an increase of 2.1 percent. The corresponding increase in the cost of the coal used is
approximately $464,000 or a 10 percent increase over 2003. Due to the increase in coal used, the
associated costs of allowances, fuel handling, and ash disposal increased approximately
$134,000. The change in the fuel cost to be recovered from customers represents an additional
expense or reduction in expense. The amount of the change in fuel cost to be recovered from
December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004 is a decrease in expense of approximately $446,000.
The Utility entered into a contract to purchase six megawatts of wind power. The wind power
was first received in December 2002. The cost of the purchased wind power and the
transmission cost of the wind power represent an increase of approximately 517,000 from 2003.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Administrative and general expenses increased 7.5 percent in 2004 primarily due to an increase
of approximately $309,000 in employee insurance and benefit costs.

Other non-operating revenues and expenses, net, increased 134.3 percent in 2004 primarily due
to a $259,000 gain on the disposition of land, an increase of approximately $92,000 in interest
income earned and an increase of approximately $290,000 in interest on long-term debt due to
the 2003 revenue bonds.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Net capital assets represent 59.1 percent of total assets for the Utility. Net capital assets
increased 25.3 percent from the prior year due to distribution system additions. Additional detail
on the change in capital assets can be found in Note 4.

During 2002, the Board of Trustees approved the joint ownership agreement for the construction
and operation of the Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit 4. The Utility will become a 2.02
percent owner which is approximately 16 megawatts, Our total estimated cost to construct is
approximately $25,000,000 and operation is expected to begin in 2007. Construction work i
progress related to this project at December 31, 2004 is approximately $7,465,709.

The Board of Trustees authorized the issuance of revenue bonds in an amount not to exceed
$35,000,000 for electric system improvements and extensions, including the construction of
generation and transmission assets. On December 18, 2003 $10,000,000 of revenue bonds were
issued for the first phases of the projects. Additional detail on the issuance of revenue bonds can
be found in Note 5.
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MUNTIOCIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2004 and 2003

Asgets 2004 2003
Capital assets: (note 4)
Capital assets, in service S 106,548,512 § 96,564,370
Less accumulated depreciation 58,601,755 56,422,028
41,946,757 40,142,342
Construction work in progress 11,118,528 2,192,830
Net capital assets (note B8) 53,065,285 42,335,172
Noncurrent asgets:
Noncurrent investments: (note 3}
Restricted (note 2} 5,622,994 10,030,000
Unrestricted 9,751,592 9,206,139
Note receivable (note 9} 2,783,090 3,083,090
Total noncurrent assets 18,157,676 22,329,225
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 1) 2,110,505 3,861,603
Investments {note 3) 7,579,469 7,485,000
Receivables:
Customer accounts, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $34,256 in 2004 and $22,800 in 2003 2,472,660 2,091,043
Due from affiliated utility (note 9) - 181,779
Interest {note 9) 328,764 268,335
Current installment of note receivable (note 9) 310,000 471,500
Other 561,290 313,313
Inventories:
Fuel 1,805,734 1,302,821
Material and supplies 760,175 685,069
Prepayments and other 623,998 117,644
Restricted - cash (note 2) 1,778,878 519,045
Total current assets 18,331,471 17,297,152
Deferred costs:
Deferred costs 285,484 332,071
Total assets $ 89,839,916 82,293,624

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




Long-term debt, less current installments (note 5)

Current liabilities:
Accounts payaple
Reserve for surplus declaration (note 9)
Accrued wages and vacations
Accrued interest
Other accrued expenses
Current installments of long-term debt ({note 5)
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities: (note 5)
Customer advances for construction
Other lisbilities {note 3)

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in captial assets, net of related debt
Restricted - bond indentures {note 2}
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$

$

2004 2003
14,353,376 15,121,378
3,283,274 1,330,781
1,200,000 1,400,000
441,030 358,838
BZ,584 84,923
158,444 145,599
785,000 745,000
5,960,342 4,065,142
127,950 133,544
4,126,415 1,167,885
4,254,365 1,301,828
24,568,083 20,488,350
42,826,327 34,420,776
2,440,910 2,532,046
20,004,596 24,852,452
65,271,833 61,805,274
89,839,916 82,253,624
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MUNICIPAL HLECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Operating revenues:
Sales of electricity:
Residential 5 10,070,822 3,059,188
Large industrial & commercial 1,574,862 1,479,814
Small industrial & commercial 8,489,530 7,644,487
Governmental (note 9) 2,274,275 2,043,988
Sales for resale 1,792,504 1,575,080
Interdepartmental 142,406 123,984
Total sales of electricity 24,344,499 21,970,531
Other coperating revenues 1,289,385 1,280,148
Total operating revenues 25,633,884 23,250,679
Operating expenses:
Production and generation:
Fuel 5,182,276 5,288,726
Purchagsed power 2,660,981 2,145,982
Other 3,300,487 2,783,045
Transmission 800,577 948,671
Distributicn 1,800,340 1,681,973
Depreciation and amortization 2,514,784 3,097,329
Cugtomer accounts 647,114 624,574
Customer service and information expenses 365,479 344,531
Sales 76,063 83,304
pdministrative and general (note %) 4,571,719 4,318,590
Taxes other than income taxes 819,093 652,395
Total cperating expenses 22,732,913 21,969,120
Operating income (loss) 2,900,971 1,281,558
Nonoperating revenues {expenses):
Interest income {(note %) 711,606 535,205
Net increage (decrease) in the fair value of investments (119,609) (34,990)
Miscellaneous revenue (expense), net (note 9) 503,586 188,737
Interest expense on long-term debt (325,051} {442,911)
Interest expense on security deposits (4,944} (4,635
Total nonoperating revenues ({(expenses) 565,588 241,406
Change in net assets 3,466,559 1,522,565
Net assets, beginning of year 61,805,274 60,282,308
Net assets, end of year S 65,271,833 61,805,274

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MUNTCIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers 5
Cash paid to suppliers

Cash paid to employees

Payment in lieu of taxes to the City of Cedar ¥alls

Property tax paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Advance to affiliated utility
Proceeds From affliliated utility
Interest paid

Net cash provided by noncapital financing
activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Principal payments on long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds

Cost of issuance of revenue bonds

Proceeds from customer advances for construction

Refunds of customer advances for construction

Acquisition, construction and removal cost of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Reimbursement of utility construction costs

Interest paid

Net cash provided by (used in} capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from repayment of loan by associated utility
Loan to associated utility

Proceeds from maturities of investment securities
Purchase of investment securities

Interest received

Net cash provided by {used in)investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (note 1) $

2004 2003
25,548,031 $ 23,525,064
(12,043,228} (14,422,989)
(2,686,399) (2,623,467)
{1,400,000) {1,400, 000}
{370,108} {285,922)
9,048,296 4,792,686
- {181,779)
181,779 384,196
(3,795) (6,713)
177,984 195,704
(745,000) {745,738)
- 9,865,834
- {55,250)
234,450 119,500
(240, 444) (137,263}
(13,183,137} {3,656,378)
20,597 14,096
188,353 166, 764
(762,317} (415,5857)
(14,487,698} 5,152,408
471,500 310,000
- {161,3500)
18,486,000 25,005, 000
{14,839,927) (35,015, 000}
652,578 477,744
4,770,151 {13,383,758)
{491,267} {3,242, 958)
4,380,648 7,623,606
3,889,381 3 4,380,648

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Operating income g 2,900,971 § 1,281,558
Adjustments to reconcile operating incaome to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortizaticon of capital assets 2,514,784 3,097,329
Other income related to operating activities 503,586 188,737
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (629, 594) 59,871
(Increase) decrease in inventories (578,018} 564,338
Increase in prepayments and othexr {506,354) {3,150)
Decreagse in other assets 26,862 21,889
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,962,493 (942,967)
Tncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and vacation 82,191 (114,143)
Decrease in reserve for surplus declaration (200,000} -
Increase {(decrease) in other accrued expenses 12,845 (50,931)
Increase in other liabilities 2,958,530 690, 066
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 9,048,296 % 4,792,686

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(b Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa}

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a}

{b)

Organization and Basis of Accounting

The Municipal Electric Utility (Utility) of the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa is a
component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The Utility's rates are set
by its governing board. The Utility follows the accounting practices
prescribed through the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission f£or regulated
utilities and proprietary fund accounting for governmental entities under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Utility's present capacity consists of one wholly owvned and two jointly cowned
coal-fired plants with a combined generating capacity of 88 megawatts. The
Utility owns two wholly owned combustion turbines with a generating capacity
of 53 megawatts. The Utility also owns 1.5 megawatts of generating capacity in
a jointly owned wind turbine facility. The Utility owns a total cof 142.5
megawatts of generating capacity.

The Utility, as a regulated utility, follows the Code of Federal Regulations
title 1B-Conservation of Power and Water Rescurces, Chapter I-Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission, Department of Enexgy.

Tn accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the Utility applies only Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1383.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are stated at original cost, including an allowance for funds used
during construction. The allowance for funds used during construction {AFUDC)
represents the estimated cost of funds ysed for construction purposes. AFUDC
was capitalized on utility comstruction at a rate of 4.63% in 2004 and 2003.
Depreciation of capital assets in service is calculated on a composite
straight-line method at rates based on estimated service lives and salvage
values of several classes of capital assets.

The range of estimated service lives for the classes of capital assets are as
follows: land improvements - 30 years, infrastructure - 10 to 150 years,
buildings and improvements -~ 20 to 55 years, and equipment - 5 £to 25 years.
The depreciation provisioms were equivalent to an overall composite rate of
2.8% and 3.6% of depreciable assets for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. At the
time capital assets are retired, the original cost of the asset plus cost of
removal less salvage are charged to accumulated depreciation.

(Continued)
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, TOWA
(A Compoment Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{c)

(a)

Cash and Investments

The Utility's deposits at December 31 werxe entirely covered by federal depository
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of Towa. This chapter provides Zfor additional assessments against
depositories to ensure there will be no loss of public funds.

Investments are stated at their fair value on the balance sheets. The Utility's
investments stated at fair value reflect quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date, for U.3. Treasury and government agency debt securities. The cost
of certificates of deposit approximates fair value.

The Utility considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months
or less at purchase to be cash ecquivalents for purposes of the statements of

cash flows. Included in cash and cash equivalents at December 33, 2004 was
$500,000 for amounts invested in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust
{IPAIT) .

The Utility's cash and cash equivalents can be identified on the balance sheets
ag follows:

2004 20063
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $2,110,50% 53,861,603
Restricted - cash 1,778,876 519, 045
$£3,889,381 54,380,648

Inventories

Coal and oil inventories are valued at average cost. Materials and supplies are
valued at average cost. Inventories are recorded as an expenditure at the
time individual inventory items are consumed.

(e} Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues include revenues resulting from the sale of electricity,
service revenues and sales of capacity. Operating expenses include expenses
for power production, transmission, distribution, depreciation, customer
accounts, customer service and informational, sales, and administrative and
general. Nonoperating xrevenues and expenses include those derived from
capital and related financing activities, noncapital financing activities and
investing activities.

Revenues from the sale of electricity are based on billing rates, which are
applied to customers' consumption of electricity. The Utility records
estimated unbilled revenue, iacluding amounts to be billed under a fuel
adjustment clause, at the end of accounting periods. Revenues earned, but not
yet billed at December 31, 2004 and 2003, were $805,822, and $278,676,
respectively, and are recorded in customer accounts receivable. The Utility
uses a fuel adjustment clause whereby increases or decreases in fuel costs are
billed to customers and included in operating revenue without changing base
rates charged tc its customers.

{Continued)




- 32 -

MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THEE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{f) Bond Issue Costs

Unamortized bond issue costs are amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method.

(g) Net hssets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the
financial statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used for acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets and increased by unspent debt
proceeds of this capital related debt. Net assets are reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

The Utility's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.

The Utility uses a pooled cash account with affiliated utilities. Acotivity
between utilities that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
due to cash overdrafts in certain affiliated utilities at the end of the year
are referred to as “due to/due from affiliated utilities”.

{h} Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

{2) Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent monies set aside under the terms of the bond resolutions
relating to the Series 199%A7, 18338, and 2003 revenue bonds. In accordance with
the covenants of the bond resolutions, monies are also segregated into various
funds. The composition of these funds as of December 31 was as follows:

2004 2003
Current assets - restricted:

Bongd reserve fund 8 1,500 g 739,962
Bond and interest fund 126,957 127,100
Construction fund 1,650,419 {348,017)
Restricted-cash 1,778,876 519,045

Noncurrent assets - reatricted:
Improvement and extensicn fund 1,000,000 1,000,000
Bond reserve fund 1,373,994 730,000
Construction fund 3,249,000 8,300,000
Restricted noncurrent investments 5,622,994 10,030,000
Total restricted assets $_ 7,401,870 $10,549,015

{Continued}
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Restricted Assets, Continued

The monies deposited into the various funds have been invested in interest-bearing
securities as regquired by the bond reseolutions. Amounts deposited in the above
funds may only be used for the purpose of paying principal and interest on the
bonds when due or such other purposes as set forth in the bond resolutions and as
a result are classified as restricted.

Investments

The Utility is authorized by statute to invest public funds not currently needed for
operating expenses in obligations of the United States government, its agencies
and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at
federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of Trustees, prime
eligible bapkers acceptances, certain high rated commercial paper; perfected
repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment
companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement
certificates of a drainage district.

The Utility classifies its investments {including those presented as cash
equivalents) into categories, which present an indication of the level of credit
risk in relation to the nature of the investment and the custodial provisions.
Category 1 securities are insured, registered, held by the Utility, or heid by the
Utility's agent in the Utility's name. Category 2 denotes uninsured and
unregistered securities that are held by counterparty’s trust department or agent
in the Utility’s name. Category 3 specifies uninsured and unregistered securities
that are held by counterparty’s trust department or agent in other than the
Uegility’'s name. fnvestments in IPAIT are not subject to risk categorization.
Tovestments in IPAIT are recorded with cash and cash equivalents. The Ucility's
investments are classified as follows at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and carrying

value equals fair value:

Iinvestment Categoxry 2004 2003
Certificates of deposit 1 511,734,000 513,788,000
U.8. government and
agency securities 2 11,220,055 9,933,138
§22,954,055 $26,.721,139

The Utility's investments can be identified on the balance sheets as follows:

2004 2003
Current assets:
Investmenis 5 7,579,469 & 7,485,000
Noncurrent investments:
Restricted 5,622,894 10,030,000
Unrestricted 9,751,592 5,206,139
22,954,055 $26,721,3139

{Continued)
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31,

Capital Assets

2004 and 2003

2 summary of capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

follows:
Additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2004 Balance In cut Balance
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land ] 830,431 $ 201,251 3% 39,578 § 991,703
Construction work in progress 2,182,830 13,617,734 4,692,036 11,138,528
Total capital assets, not 3,023,261 13,818,585 4,732,015 12,110,231
being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 4,683 - - 4,683
Infrastructure 71,702,410 2,856,219 310,547 74,248,082
Buildings and improvements 10,799,268 93,100 8,626 10,883,742
Equipment 13,227,578 1,541,466 348,742 14,420,302
Total capital assets, 95,733,939 4,490,785 667,915 99,556,808
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation (56,422,028) {2,775,705) (59%,978) (58,601,755)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 39,311,911 1,715,080 71,937 40,955,053

Capital assets, net

2003
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction work in progress
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Total capital assets,
being depreciated

iess accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

$42,335,3172

515,534,065 $4,803,952

$53.065,285

5 830C,431 5 - 5 - 5 830,431
643,947 3,865,860 2,317,077 2,182,830
1,474,378 3,865,960 2,317,077 3,023,261
4,683 - - 4,683
70,797,666 1,256,323 391,578 71,702,410
10,685,118 119,637 5,487 10,799,268
12,437,925 920,826 131,173 13,227,578
53,925,392 2,336,786 528,239 95,733,939
(53,454,678) {3,309,935) 342,645 (56,422,028)
40,470,714 {973,209) 185,594 35,311,911
§41,945 092 $2,892,751 $2,502,671 542,335,172

(Continued}
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

{5) Noncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was as

follows:
Amounts
Due
Beginning Ending Within
2004 Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Series 1999%9A revenue bonds § 3,925,000 § - § 325,000 S 3,600,000 $350,000
Series 19998 revenue bonds 2,075,000 - 185,000 1,890,000 185,000
Series 2003 revenue bonds 10,000,000 - 235,000 9,765,000 240,000
Unamortized discount on
revenue bonds {133,621) - (16,997} {116,624) -
Installment payment agreement - - - - -
15,866,379 - 728,003 15,138,376 $785,000
Current installments of
long-term debt (745,000} (40,000} - (785, 000)
Long-term debt, less
current installments 15,321,379 {40,000) 728,003 14,353,376
Customer advances for
construction 133,944 234,450 240,444 127,950
Other liabilities:
Landfill closure 477,818 - - 477,819
Severance 294,146 278,798 - 572,944
Contract payable 395,520 2,679,732 - 3,075,652
Noncurrent liabhilities 1,301,828 3,192,980 240,444 4,254,365
Total noncurrent liabilities $16,423,208 $3,152,980 $_968,447 $18,607.741
2003
Series 1999A revenue bonds $4,230,000 5 - $ 305,000 S5 3,925,000 $325,000
Series 19998 revenue bonds 2,250,000 - 175,000 2,075,000 185,000
Series 2003 revenue bonds - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 235,000
Unamortized discount on
revenue bonds - (134,166) (545} (133,621) -
Installment payment agreement 269,738 - 269,738 - -

6,749,738 9,865,834 749,193 15,866,379 $745 000
Current installments of

long-term debt {749,738) = (4,738) {745,000}
Long-term debt, less

current installments 6,000,000 %,865,834 744,455 15,121,379
Customer advances for

construction 151,307 119,900 137,263 133,944
Other liabilities:

Landfill closure 477,819 - - 477,819

Severance - 294,146 - 294,146

Contract payable - 395,920 - 385,920
Noncurrent liabilities 629,126 809, 966 137,263 1,301,829

Total noncurrent liabilities 6,629,126 $10,675,800 $_881,718 516,423,208

During 2003, the Utility issued £10,000,000 of Series 2003 revenue bonds for the
purpose of paying costs of improvements and extensions to the Utility, including
the construction of generation and related transmission facilities to serve the
Ugility. The bonds mature in 2023 and interest rates throughout the term of the
bonds are in a range between 3.25% and 4.50%.

(Continued)



- 16 -

MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(5) Noncurrent Liabilities, Continued

The Series 19994, 19998, and 2003 revenue bonds require annual principal payments,
due December 1, and semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1.
Interest rates throughout the term of the bonds are in a range between 3.25% and
7.125%. The bonds are secured by the future net revenues of the Utility. Long-
term debt matures and bears interest as follows:

Serijies 1999A Series 1999B Series 2003

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
2005 § 350,000 & 255,874 § 195,000 § 92,463 $ § 390,150

240,000

2006 375,060 231,024 205,000 83,200 245,000 382,350
2007 400,000 204,399 215,000 73,463 250,000 374,388
2008 430,000 175,958 225,000 63,142 25%,000 366,262
2005-2013 2,045,000 376,552 1,080,000 135,330 1,665,000 1,687,150
2014-2018 - - - - 3,150,000 1,260,412
2019-2023 - - - - 3,580,000 542,510

43,600,000 $1,243,847 51,890,000 § 447,598 59,765,000 §5,013,222

The bond resolution provides certain covenants relating to the collection,
segregation, and distribution of revenues from customers; places certain
restrictions on future borrowing and leasing or disposition of assets; and
requires that minimum insurance coverage be maintained.

Towa Administrative Code rule 567-103.2(13) requires the Utility to place a final
cover on its Leversee Road ash landfill site when it is closed and thereupon to
have in place surveying monuments and an approved groundwater monitoring system.
Towa Administrative Code rule 567-103.2(14) reguires the Utility to maintain the
final cover, monitor ground water, and file reports with the Iowa Department of
Natural Resources for thirty vyears following closure of the site. Although
closure and post closure costs are paid only near or after the date that the
land£ill is closed, the Utility reports a portion of these closure and post
closure cCosts as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity
used as of each balance sheet date. The $477,815 reported as landfill closure and
post closure care liability at December 31, 2004, represents the cumulative amount
reported to date based on the use of 100% of the estimated capacity of the

landfill. This is based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post
closure care in 2005. The Utility expects to close the landfill no earlier than
the year 200S. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in

technology, or changes in regulations.

{6) Pension Plan

The Utility comtributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System, (IPERS) a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of Iowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits, which are
established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing IPERS,
P.0. Box 9117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-9117.

(Continued)
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MUNICIPAL, ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(6) Pension Plan, Continued

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered salary and
the Utility is required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll.
Contribution requirements are established by State statute. The Utility’s
contributions for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $272,558;

$248,500; and $239,143; respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year.

{7) Income Tax Status

The Utility is exempt Ifrom federal and state income taxes under the applicable tax
codes.

(8) Jeointly-Owned Capital Assets

The Utility's share of jointly owned electric facilities at December 31, 2004 and
2003 is reflected in the following table. These facilities provide approximately
27% of the Utility's total generating capacity. The Utility is required to
provide financing for its share of the facilities. The Utility's share of
expenses associated with these facilities is incliuded with the appropriate
operating expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net

assets.
Capital Assets, Net
Percentage Capacity
Facility ownership MW 2004 2003
Council Bluffs #3 3.1% 20.9 $4,064,829 $4,374,793
Neal #4 2.5 15.86 2,233,048 2,571,376
Iowa Distributed Wind Generation Project 635.8 1.5 917,916 961,000

(8) Related Party Transactions

The Utility uses a pooled cash account with affiliated utilities. Activity between
utiliities that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements due to cash
overdrafts in certain affiliated utilities at the end of the year are referred to
as "“due to/due from affiliated utility~”. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the
Utility had a due from affiliated utility of $0.00 and $181,779, respectively,
under this agreement.

The Utility makes payments in lieu of taxes upon approval by the Board of Trustees to
the Qity of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Expenses for 2004 and 2003 were $1,200,000 and
$1,400,000, respectively, which were recorded in administrative and general
expenses. Subsequent to December 31, 2004, the Utility’s Board of Trustees
approved a payment of $1,200,000 related to payments in lieu of taxes for 2004.

In addition, the Utility provides electric service to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.
Operating revenues from the service provided amounted to $571,764 and $478,584 in
2004 and 2003, respectively.

The HBlectric Utility has extended a loan to the Municipal Communications Utility of
the City of Cedar Falls (Communications Utility), with an outstanding balance of
$3,093,090 and $3,403,090 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Interest
accerues on the loan at 3.10% and is paid semi-annually during January and July.
Semi-annual principal payments continue through 2016. Accrued interest receivable
was $50,606 and $55,585 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Interest
income for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $103,066 and $3112,665
respectively.

{Continued)
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(9) Related Party Transactions, Continued

During 2003, the Electric Utility extended a loan to the Municipal Gas Utility of the
City of Cedar Falls (Gas Utility), with an outstanding balance of $161,500 as of
December 31, 2003. Interest accrues on the loan at 3.10%. Principal and interest
were paid at maturity, July 2004. Accrued interest receivable was $-0~ and $3,196
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Interest income for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $2,496 and $3,196, regpectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Utility earned a management fee
of $67,510 from the Communications Utility for administration, finance, human
resources and legal services, which is recorded in miscellaneous nonoperating
revenue,

{10) Risk Management

The Cedar ¥Falls Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities
(Utilities) are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees;
and natural disasters. The Utilities purchase commercial insurance for claims
related to these risks. The Utilities maintain a risk management account to
account for risks related to their self-funded medical insurance plan. The risk
management account provides employee health ingsurance coverage for the Utilities’
employees and the participating retirees. The Utilities self-fund the first
$60,000 of claims per individual and $2,013,300 in aggregate for all participants
and have insurance for claims above this amount.

Liabilities of the risk management account are reported when it is probable that a
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Iiabilities include an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNR) which represent estimates of the eventual loss op claims arising
prior to year-end. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past
two years are as follows:

2004 2003
Unpaid claimsz, beginning of year ] 112,350 g 181,700
Current year claims and changes in estimates 1,593,270 1,149,399
Claim payments (1,543,385} {1,218,749)
Unpaid claims, end of year S 162,225 5 112,350

The Utility has recorded $94,090 and $66,287 in accounts payable for its share of
these unpaid claims at December 31, 2004 and 2003, regpectively.

The Utilities are a member of the Towa Municipalities Workers’ Compensation
Association {(the Association), which was established to provide members a group
self-insurance program for their workers’ compensation liabilities. Approximately
470 governmental entities participate in the Association. A board of trustees
consisting of seven members is elected by the menmbers participating in the

Association to manage and conduct the business and affairs of the Association.

(Continued}
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa}

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

{10) Risk Management, Continued

The following table sets forth summarized financial data of the Association as of and

for its year ended June 30, 2004.

Cash and cash equivalents and investments $22,960,768
Receivables 814,103
Other assets 668,545

Total assets $24,443,416
Total liabilities 18,559,769
Total equity 5,883,647

Total liabilities and equity 24,443,416
Total revenues 663,637
Total expenses 2,425,524
Distribution to members -

Net decrease in equity ${(1,761,887)

There have been no instances where the amount of settlement has exceeded available

coverage in the past three years. There has been no significant reduction in
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year.

{11} Commitments and Contingencies

The Utility jointly owns the Council Bluffs #3 generating unit and the Neal #4

on

generating unit (see note 8). Coal procurements are made by the agent for the
joint owners on a system portfolio basis, which are a mix of 1, 2, and 3-year
purchases to minimize risk. The Utility is obligated to purchase at least the
annual amount of coal to operate the Utility's share at minimum load. The
Utility’'s share of coal purchases for the years 2004 and 2003 were $§1,995,851 and
§1,926,908, respectively.

July 29, 2002, the Board of Trustees approved the joint ownership agreement for
the construction and operation of the Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit 4. The
Utility will become a 2.02% owner which is approximately 15.97 megawatts. The
Utility’'s total estimated cost to construct is $25 miliion. Preliminary design
work was started in 2003 with operations expected to begin in 2007.

The Utility is a party to various lawsuits arising in the normal course of business.

As

The Utility believes the resolutions will not have a material adverse impact on
its financial operations and net assets.

of December 31, 2004, the Utility was involved in several construction projects
with an estimated cost to complete of approximately $4,924,546.

(12) Subsequent Eventsg

Effective January 1, 2005, the Board of Trustees approved a general electric rate

increase. The average rate increase is approximately 5.0% for all of the customer
classes with each rate increase for a customer ¢lass varying.

{Continued)
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric Utility

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric Utility of Cedar
Falls, lowa (the Utility), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 30, 2005. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; Chapter 11 of the Code of lowa; and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government duditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States,

Comptliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The resuits of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted a certain immaterial instance of non-
compliance that is described in Part I1 of the accompanying Schedule of Findings.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility’s operations for the year ended
December 31, 2004, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
audit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based on tests and sampies, not ail
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes. There were no prior year statutory comments and recommendations.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
www.eidebailly.com
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by
error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of the Utility in a separate letter dated March 30, 2005. There were no prior year
reportable conditions.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and the customers of the Utility and other parties to whom the Utility may report.
This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of
the Utility during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the
above matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

é@xﬁu@ Le7

Dubugque, lowa
March 30, 2005



CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES - MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2604

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor’s Results:

(a) Anunqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements.

(b) No material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were noted.

(¢) The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial
statements.

Part II: Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting:

1I-A-04

TI-B-04

H-C-04

11-D-04

11-E-04

H-F-04

11-G-04

II-H-04

H-1-04

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been approved by
the Utility’s Board of Trustees. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution
were not exceeded during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2004, did not
exceed the amounts budgeted.

Questionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures that we believe may fail to
meet the requirements of public purpose as defined in an Aftorney General’s opinion
dated April 25, 1979.

Travel Expense - No expenditures of Utility money for travel expenses of spouses of
Utility officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions - No business transactions between the Utility apd Utility
officials or employees were noted.

Bond_Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Utility officials and employees is in
accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed
annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Board minutes but were not.

Deposits_and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of Iowa and the Utility’s
investment policy were noted.

Revenue Bonds - We noted no instances of non~compliance with the provisions of the
Utility’s revenue bond resolutions.



CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES — MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

[I-1-04 Notice of Public Hearing ~ Notice of public hearing for public improvements with a
total cost to the Utility of $25,000 or more is to be published not less than four nor
more than twenty days prior to the public hearing in accordance with Chapters 384.102
and 362.3 of the Code of Iowa. We noted several notices of public hearing that were
published more than twenty days prior to the public hearing.

Recommendation — We recommend that the Utility examine the procedures in place
regarding publication of notice of public hearing to ensure that they are in compliance
with the requirements of the Code of Jowa in the future.

Response ~ We will change the process we have been using of counting clear days for
notices. Going forward, we will count calendar days but not include the day of
publication.

Conclusion — Response accepted.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Gas Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Gas Utility of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the
Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; Chapter 11 of the Code of Jowa; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards and
provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 30, 2003, on
our consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 4 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

@M Lot

March 30, 2005
Dubuque, Iowa

PEQPLE. PRINCIPLES, POSSIBILITIES.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Our discussion and analysis of the Municipal Gas Utility (Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls,
Towa’s financial performance provides an overview of the Utility’s financial activities for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. Please read this information in conjunction with the
financial statements and the accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this
section.

Financial Highlights

o The Utility’s net assets increased as a result of operations in 2004 and 2003. At December 31,
2004 and 2003, total assets were $20,266,152 and 521,054,557, respectively, and total habilities
were $5,302,085 and $6,170,882, respectively, resulting in net assets 0f $14,964,067 and
$14,883,675, respectively.

o Operating revenues decreased 2.6 percent to $14,883,766 while operating expenses increased
6.7 percent to $14,779,740 in 2004. Operating revenues increased 27.2 percent to $15,283,494
while operating expenses increased 25.5 percent to $13,853,097 in 2003.

e During the vear, the Utility had operating income of $104,026. This compares to last year,
when the Utility had operating income of $1,430,397.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the financial
statements, and the MD&A represents management’s examination and analysis of the Utility’s
financial condition and performance. The financial statements report information about the
Utility using full accrual accounting methods as utilized by similar entities in the private sector.

The balance sheets include the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provide information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors
(liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Utility and
assessing the liquidity and flexibility of the Utility.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets present the results of the Utility’s
activities (revenues and expenses) over the course of the fiscal year and can provide information
about the Utility’s recovery of its costs. Retail rates to purchase gas are based on rates
established by the Board of Trustees based on operating costs, debt service requirements, and
anticipated capital needs. A fundamental objective of this rate model 1s to provide adequate
revenue to cover all expenses.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

The statements of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operations, capital and related financing activities and investing activities. This
statement provides answers to such questions as where did the cash come from, what was cash
used for, and what was the change in cash balances during the reporting period.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are
essential to a full understanding of data provided in the statements. The notes present
information about the Utility’s accounting policies, significant account balances and activities,
material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for
management, monitoring and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheet Information

2004 2003
Current assets $ 8,260,068 $ 9,375,634
Capital assets, net 10,800,847 10,467,493
Other noncurrent assets 1.205.237 1,211.430
Total assets $20.266,152 $21.054,557
Current Habilities 3,198,925 3,670,553
Noncurrent liabilities 283,935 185,436
Long-term debt 1.819.225 2,314,893
Total liabilities $ 5302085 ) $ 6,170,882
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 8,481,622 8,127,600
Restricted 1,199,431 1,054,117
Unrestricted 5,283,014 5,701,958

Total net assets $14.964.067 $14.883.675
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Condensed Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2004 2003
Sales of gas $14,856,834 $15,265,110
Other 26,932 18.384
Total operating revenues . _14.883.766 15.283.494
System operation and maintenance 12,105,153 11,514,682
Depreciation 600,068 588,297
Service and administrative 2,074.515 1,750,118
Total operating expenses 14,779,740 13.853.097
Operating income 104,026 1,430,397
Interest income 69,521 62,262
Other, net (93.155) 53.134
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) (23.634) 115,396
Change in net assets 80,392 1,545,793
Net assets, beginning of year 14,883.675 13,337,882
Net assets, end of year $14.964.067 $14,883.675

Financial Analysis

Current assets decreased 11.9 percent in 2004 primarily as the result of the following: cash and
investments increased 35.4 percent as a result of approximately $540,000 more cash provided by
operating activities; reduction of accounts receivable of 15.7 percent; use of natural gas purchase
options totaling approximately $55,000 during 2004 and no options available at December 31,
2004,

Noncurrent liabilities increased 53.1 percent in 2004 primarily due to the recording of accrued
retirement insurance benefits totaling approximately $71,380 that employees are entitled to
receive upon retirement with 20 years of continuous service; and an increase in customer
advances for construction of 8.8 percent.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Sales of gas decreased 2.7 percent in 2004 primarily due to the rate restructuring and reduction

effective January 1, 2004, with an overall effect of -3.0 percent; and the increase in the average

PGA of $.83 per mef. The average PGA was $4.23 per mef and $3.40 per mef during 2004 and
2003, respectively. The $0.83 per mef increase is approximately $1,233,000 more revenue.

System operation and maintenance expenses increased 5.1 percent in 2004 primarily due to the
increase in wholesale gas costs. This is reflected in the $0.83 per mcf increase in the average
PGA from 2003 to 2004 and the increase in natural gas purchased of approximately $1,033,283.
System operation and maintenance expenses also increased due to the change in the fuel cost to
be recovered from customers. The change in fuel cost to be recovered represents an additional
expense or reduction in expense. The amount of the change in fuel cost to be recovered from
December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004 is a decrease in expense of approximately $151,614.
Also, the recording of accrued retirement insurance benefits resulted in an increase of
approximately $42,600 to system operation and maintenance expenses.

Interest income increased 11.7 percent in 2004 primarily due to a 14.7 percent increase in cash
and cash equivalents that resulted in an increase in checking interest income. Although, the
arbitrage rebate of interest income to the IRS of $19,642 for excess earnings on the bond reserve
fund for the 1994 Gas Revenue Bonds refunded in 2003 decreased interest income in 2004.

Other nonoperating revenues and expenses, net decreased $146,289 in 2004 primarily due to the
gain on disposition of the propane gas equipment of approximately $177,000 in 2003. Interest
expense decreased 14.1 percent from 2003 to 2004 since the redemption of the 1994 revenue
bonds related interest accruals.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Net capital assets represent 53.3 percent of total assets for the Utility. Net capital assets
increased 3.2 percent from the prior year primarily due to the carryover of several large projects.
Additional detail on the change in capital assets can be found in Note 4.

On May 13, 2003, the Utility expended $1,041,542 for the redemption of the outstanding series
1994 revenue bonds and related accrued interest. The Utility used their own funds, as well as, the
proceeds of a loan from the Municipal Electric Utility in the amount of $161,500 to extinguish
the debt. During 2004 the outstanding balance of $161,500 was paid to the Municipal Electric
Utility. Additional detail on the redemption can be found in Note 5.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY QOF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2004 and 2003

Assets 2004 2003
Capital assets: (note 4)
Capital assets, in service g 16,473,574 5 15,956,691

Less accunulated depreciation 6,102,204 5,545,813

10,371,28¢ 10,406,878

Construction work in progress 429,567 £0,615

Net capital assets 10,800,847 14,467,493
Noncurrent assets:
Noncurrent investments: {note 3}
Restricted {(note 2) 949,431 950, 087
Unrestricted 248,57% 250,938
Total noncurrent investments 1,198,006 1,201,035
Current assetbs:
Cash angd cash eguivalents {(note 1) 3,885,854 3,490,284
Investments {note 3} 766,063 685,569
Receivables:
Customer accounts, less allowance for deubtful
accounts of §20,232 in 2004 and $22,300 in 2003 3,025,508 3,320,062

Trade 65%,234 1,441,706

Notes - 24,126

Interest 22,257 13,032
Inventories:

Material and supplies 131,395 124,837
Prepayments and other 41,03% $8,533
Restricted - cash (note 2) 322,716 177,485

Total current assets 8,260,068 9,375,634

Deferred costs:
Deferred costs 7,231 10,395

Total assets 8 20,265,152 & 21,054,557

See accompanying notes to fimancial statements.




Liabilities
Long-term debt, less current installments (note 5)

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Reserve for surplus declaration (note 9)
Notes payable
Acerued wages and vacations
Accrued interest
Other accrued expenses
Current installments of long-term debt (note 5)
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities: (note 5}
customer advances for construction
Other liabilities

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Nel Assets

Invested in captial assets, net of related debt
Regtricted - bond indentures (note 2}
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net asseils

$

$

2004 2003
1,819,225 § 2,314,893
2,201,795 3,212,028

20¢,000 -

- 161,5G0C

161,671 129,865
72,716 76,662
62,743 65,498
500,000 25,000
3,198,925 3,670,553
78,651 72,303
205,284 113,133
283,835 185,436
5,302,085 6,170,882
8,481,622 8,127,600
1,199,431 1,054,117
5,283,014 5,701,858
14,964,067 14,883,675
20,266,152 § 21,054,557
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Operating revenues:
Sales of gas:
Residential 8,693,179 %,830,813
Industrial 1,583,616 1,467,049
Commercial 3,574,958 3,119,589
Governmental (note 8) 873,008 725,854
Interdepartmental 132,032 121,305
Total sales of gas 14,856,834 15,265,110
Other operating revenues 26,932 18,384
Total operating revenues 14,883,766 15,283,454
Operating expenses:
Producticn:
Natural gas purchased for resale 11,144,540 10,262,870
Other 26,780 219,722
Distribution 933,833 1,032,080
Depreciation 600,068 588,257
Customer accounts 375,138 370,131
Customer service and information expenses 44,680 52,239
Sales 21,063 22,304
Administrative and general (note 8) 1,524,114 1,185,170
Taxes other than income taxes 109,524 110,274
Total operating expenses 14,779,740 13,853,097
Operating income (loss) 104,026 1,430,397
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 69,521 62,262
Net increase {(decrease) in the fair value of investments (2,383) 938
Migcellansous revenue (sxpense}, net (note 8} £0,703 228,537
Interest expense on long-term debt (151,485) (176,341)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) {23,634) 115,398
Change in net assets 80,392 1,545,793
Net assets, beginning of year 14,883,675 13,337,882
Net assets, end of year 14,964,087 5 14,883,675

See accompanying notes to financial statement.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Cash Flows

vears ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Cash Flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers S 16,696,832 8 15,527,481
Cash paid to suppliers (13,936,662) {11,571, 025)
Cash paid to employees (938,313) {1,068,551)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,821,859 2,887,905
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt (186,500} (1,050,000}
Proceeds from note payable to affiliated utility - 161,500
Proceeds from customer advances [or construction 61,005 43,515
Refunds of customer advances for construction (54,657) (48,520}
Beguisition, constructicon and removal cost of capital assets (934,675) (559,337
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,054 181,049
Reimbursement of utility construction costs 4,876 4,085
Interasst paid (172,265} {187,330}
Net cash uged in capital and related financing activities {(1,281,162) {1,455,238)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities 1,977,188 2,388,966
Purchase of investment securities {z,057,015) {2,225,668)
Interest received 79,537 63,600
Net cash provided by investing activities 104 226,900
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 540,801 1,655,567
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,667,769 2,008,202
Cash and cash eguivalents, eand of year (note 1) S 4,208,570 % 3,667,769

Sees accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, TOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Operating income 5 104,026 5 1,430,397
Adjustments to reconcile operating incomes to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation of capital assets 600,068 588,297
Other expense related to operabting activities 80,763 228,537
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 1,695,152 (10,330}
(Increase) decrease in inventories (6,558) 168,213
(Increase) decrease in prepayments and other 57,498 (60,098}
Increase {(decrease) in accounts payable {1,010,233) 471,564
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and vacation 31,806 (43,778)
Increase in reserve for surpius declaration 200,000 -
Increase (decrease} in acerued expenses (2,754) 7,870
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 92,151 113,133
Net cash provided by operating activities 5 1,821,858 § 2,887,905

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, TOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

(1) summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a)

{b)

{c)

Organization and Basis of Accounting

The Municipal Gas Utility {Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is a
component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The Utility’'s rates are set
by its governing board. The Utility follows the accounting practices
prescribed through the Federal Energy Requlatory Commission for regulated
utilities and proprietary fund accounting for governmental entities under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of mmerica.

The Utility, as a regulated utility, follows the Code of Federal Regulations
Title 18 - Conservation of Power and Water Resources, Chapter I - Federal
Fnergy Regulatory Commission, Department of Energy.

In accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the Utility applies only Financial Accounting gcandards Board (FASRB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principlies Board opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are stated at original cost, including an allowance for funds used
during comstruction. The allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC)
represents the estimated cost of funds used for construction purposes. AFUDC
was capitalized on utility construction at a rate of 5.74% in 2004 and 2003.
Depreciation of capital assets in service is calculated on a composite
straight-line method at rates based on estimated services and salvage values
of several classes of capital assets. The range of estimated service lives for
the classes of capital assets are as follows: infrastructure -~ 15 to 65 years,
buildings and improvements - 30 To 45 years, and equipment - 20 to 85 years.
The depreciation provisions were equivalent to an overall composite rate of
3.8% and 3.6% of depreciable assets for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. At the
time capital assets are retired, the original cost of the asset plus cost of
removal less salvage are charged to accumulated depreciation.

Cash and Investments

The Utility’s deposits at December 31 were entirely covered by federal depository
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of Iowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the
depositories to ensure there will be no loss of public funds.

Tnvestments are stated at their fair value on the balance sheets. The Utility's
investments stated at fair value reflect quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date, for U.S. Treasury and government agency debt securities. The cost
of certificates of deposit approximates fair value.

The Utility considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents for purposes of the
statement of cash filows. Included in cash and cash equivalents at December
31, 2004 and 2003 was $500,000, respectively for amounts invested in the Iowa
Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT).

(Continued)
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

(1) Summary of Sionificant Accounting Policies, Continued

(e}

(a)

(e}

{g)

(h)

Cash and Investments, Continued

The Utility's cash and cash equivalents can be identified on the balance sheet as

folliows:
2004 2003
Current assets:

cash and cash equivalents 53,885,854 £3,490,284
Restricted - cash 322,716 177,485
Total cash and cash equivalents $4,208,570 $3,667,769

Inventories

Materials and supplies are valued at average cost. Inventories are recorded as

an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed.

Natural Gas Commodity Purchases

The Utility has entered into agreements with natural gas suppliers to purchase

gas for resale to our customers. Purchases under these contracts are
considered “normal purchases and sales” under SFAS No. 133 and are not marked-
to-market.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues include revenues resulting from the sale of gas and service
revenues. Operating expenses include expenses for power production,
distribution, depreciation, customer accounts, customer service and
informational, sales, and administrative and general. Nonoperating revenues
and expenses include those derived from capital and related financing
activities, noncaptial financing activities, and investing activities.

Revenues from the sale of gas are based on billing rates, which are applied to
customers' consumption of gas. The Utility records estimated unbilled
revenue, including amounts to be billed under a purchased gas adjustment
clause, at the end of accounting periods. Revenues earned, but not yet billed
at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $1,509,415 and $1,446,554, respectively,
and are recorded in customer accounts receivable. The Utility uses a
purchased gas adjustment clause whereby increases and decreases in fuel costs
are billed to customers and included in operating revenue without changing
base rates charged to its customers.

Debt Discount and Bond Issue Costs

Unamortized debt discount and bond issue costs are amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest method.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the
financial statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any long-term debt wused for acguisitiom,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets ares reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulaticons of other
governments.

{Continued)
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY QF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, I10WA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{h) Net Assets, Continued

The Utility’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is

incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.

{i} Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principals generally accepted in the United States of BAmerica regquires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported

in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

{2) Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent monies set aside under the terms of the bond resolutions
relating to the Series 1992 and Series 1994 revenue bonds. In accordance with the
covenants of the bond resolutions, the monies are segregated into wvarious funds.
The composition of these funds as of December 31 was as follows:

2004 2003
Current assets - restricted:

Bond reserve fund b4 - $ 91,518
Bond and interest £und 322,716 85,966
Restricted - cash 322,716 177,485

Noncurrent assets - restricted:
Bond resexrve fund 629,431 629,431
Improvement and extension fund 320,000 320,666
Restricted noncurrent investments 949,431 950,097
Total restricted assets §1,.272 147 $1,127, 582

The monies deposited into the various funds have been invested in interest-bearing
securities as required by the bond resolutions. Amounts deposited in the above
funds may only be used for the purpose of paying principal and interest on the
bonds when due or such other purposes as set forth in the bond resolutions and as
a result are classified as restricted.

{3} Investments

The Utility is authorized by statute to invest public funds not currently needed for
operating expenses in obligations of the United States government, its agencies
and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at
federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of Trustees, prime
eligible bankers acceptances, certain high rated commercial paper; perfected
repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment
companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement
certificates of a drainage district.

(Continued)
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

(3) Investments, Continued

The Utility classifies its investwments

{including

those

presented as cash

equivalents) into categories, which present an indication of the level of credit

risk in relation to the nature of the invest
Category 1 securities are insured, registered, held by the

Utility’s agent in the Utility’s name.
unregistered securities that are held by counterparty’s trust department or agent
in the Utility’s name. Category 3 specifies uninsured and unregistered securities

that are held by counterparty’s trust
Urility's name. Investments in IPAIT are not s
Investments in IPAIT are Iecor
investments are classified as follows at December 31,

value equals fair value:

Category 2

ment and the custodial provisions.

Utility, or held by the
denotes uninsured and

ded with cash and cash equivalents.

department or agent in other than the
ubject to risk categorization.
The Utility’s
2004 and 2003 and carrying

Investment Category 2004 2003
Certificates of deposit 1 81,715,500 $1,635,666
7.58. government and
agency securities 2 248,575 250,938
$1,964,075 51,886,604

The Utility’s investments can be identified omn rhe balance sheets as follows:

2004 2003
Current assets:
Investmenkts 5 766,069 $ 685,568
Noncurrent investments:
Restricted 949,431 9503, 087
Unrestricted 248,575 250,538
$1.,964,075 51,888,604

{4} Capital Assets

A summary of capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

follows:
Additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2004 Balance In out Balance
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land 5 41,350 $ - 5 - $ 41,350
Construction work in progress 60,615 928,779 559,827 429,567
Total capital assets, not 101,965 928,779 559,827 470,917
being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreclated:
Infrastructure 14,744,195 505,249 38,271 15,211,173
Buildings and improvements 662,952 16,675 1,884 677,743
Equipment 508,184 37,903 2,789 h43,308
Total capital assets 15,915,341 559,827 42,844 16,432,224
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation (5,549,813) (600,068) 47,587 {6,102,294)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 10,365,528 (40,241} {4,643) 10,329,230
Capital assets, net 510,467,433 $888,538 $555,184 530,800,847

(Continued)
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MUNICIPAL - GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa}
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003
{4) Capital Assets, Continued
additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2003 Balance In out Balance
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land ) 41,35¢C s - - 3 41,350
Construction work in progress 21,622 362,260 323,267 60,615
Total capital assets, not 62,972 362,260 323,287 101, 965
being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 15,342,300 308,715 906,820 14,744,185
Buildings and improvements 682,652 2,145 21,845 662,952
BEgquipment 456,915 12,407 1,128 508,194
Total capital assets 16,521,867 323,267 929,793 15,915,341
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation (5,902,253) (588,297) 940,737 {5,549,813}
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 10,619,614 (265,030} (10,944) 10,365,528
Capital assets, net 510,882,586 $ 97,230 8312 ,323 510,467,493

(5) Noncurrent Liabhilities

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was as

follows:
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
2004 Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Series 1992 revenue bhonds 42,350,000 3 B 3 25,000 $2,325,000 5500, 000
Unamortized discount on
revenue bonds (10,107) - {4,332) {5,775) -
2,339,839 - 20,6868 2,319,225 $500,000
Current installments of
long-term debht {25, 000Q) (475,000} - {500,000}
Long-term debt, less
current installments 2,314,893 {475,000} 20,688 1,819,225
Customer advances for
Construction 72,303 61,005 54,657 78,651
Other liabilities:
Severance 113,133 92,1581 - 205,284
Noncurrent liabilities 185,436 153,156 54,657 283,935
Total noncurrent
liabilities 52,500,329 $(321,844) 53 75,328 $2,103,1640

{Continued)}
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

Noncurrent Liabilities, Continued
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
2003 Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Series 1994 revenue bonds $1,025,000 § - $1,025,000 3 - 3 -
Series 1992 revenue bonds 2,375,000 - 25,000 2,350,000 25,000
Unamortized discount on
revenue bonds {13,828) - (3,721} (10,107) -
3,386,172 - 1,046,893 2,339,893 $_ 25,000
Current installments of
long-term debt (530,000) - {505,000) (25,000)
Loag-term debt, less
current installiments 2,856,172 - 543,279 2,314,893
customer advances for
construction 77,308 43,515 48,520 72,303
Other liabilities:
Severance - 113,133 - 113,133
Noncurrent liabilities 77,308 156,648 48,520 185,436
Total noncurrent
liabilities §2,933 £80 $ 156,648 589,799 $2,500,329
The Series 1992 and 1994 revenue bonds reqguire annual principal payments, due July 1,

and semiannual interest payments,
throughout the term of the bonds are in a range
bonds are secured by the future net revenues of the Utility.

bear interest as follows:

Year

2005
2006
2007
2008

On May 13,

cutstanding Series 1594 revenue b
as, the proceeds of a loan from t

extinguish the debt.

Series 1992

principal Interest
Amount Amount

§ 500,000 $145,431
550,000 114,931
600,000 B0,B31
675,000 43,032
$2,325,000 $384,225

due January 1 and July 1.

Interest rates
between 4.3% and 6.375%. The
The bonds mature and

2003, the Utility expended $1,041,542 for the redemption of the
onds. The Utility used their own funds, as well
he Electric Utility in the amount of $161,500 to

The bond resolution provides certain covenants relating to the ccllection,

segregation,

restrictions on future borrowing an

and distribution of revenues from customers; places certain
d leasing or disposition of assets; and

requires that minimum insurance coverage be maintained.

Pension Plan

The Utility contributes to the Iowa Public Emplo

cost-sharing multiple-employer defined Dbenefit
IPERS provides
established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries.
financial
required supplementary information.
Des Moines,

State of Towa.

publicly available

P.O. Box 9117,

report that

Towa 50308-9117.

vees Retirement System
pension plan administered by the
retirement

includes
The report may be obtained by writing IPERS,

{IPERS), a

which are
IPERS issues a
statements and

and death Dbenefits,

financial

{Continued)
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MUNTICIPAL: CGAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Pension Plan, Continued

pPlan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered salary and the
Teility is required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll. Contribution
requirements are established by State statute. The Utility’s contributions for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $93,064; $90,526; and
$89,103; respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Income Tax Status

The Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes under the applicable tax
codes.

Related Party Transactions

The Utility provides gas service to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Operating
revepues from the service provided amounted to $132,216 and $134,721 in 2004 and
2003, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Utility earned a management fee
of 520,800 from the Municipal Communications Utility for administration, finance,
human resources and legal services, which is recorded in miscellanecus
nonoperating revenue.

During 2003, the Electric Utility extended a loan to the Municipal Gas Utility of the
city of Cedar Falls (Gas Utility), with an outstanding balance of $%161,500 as of
December 31, 2003. Interest accrues on the loan at 31.10%. Principal and interest
were paid at maturity, July 2004. Accrued interest receivable was $-0- and $3,196
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Interest income for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $2,496 and $3,196, respectively.

Rigk Management

The Cedar Falls Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities
(Utilities) are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omizsions; injuries to employees;
and natural disasters. The Utilities purchase commercial insurance for claims
related to these risks. The Utilities maintain a risk management account to
account for risks related to their self-funded medical insurance plan. ‘the risk
management account provides employee health insurance coverage for the Utilities’
employees and participating retirees. whe Utilities self-fund the first $60,000 of
claims per individual and $2,013,300 in aggregate for all participants and have
insurance for claims above this amount.

Liabilities of the risk management account are reported when it is probable that a
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasconably estimated.
Liabilities incliude an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNR) which represent estimates of the eventual loss on claims arising
prior to year-end. Changes in the balances of ¢laims liabilities during the past
two years are as follows:

2604 2003
Unpaid claims, beginning of year s 112,350 § 181,700
Current year claims and changes in estimates 1,593,270 1,149,399
Claim payments (1,543,395) {1,218B,749%)
Unpaid claims, end of year =3 162,225 % 112 350

{Continued)
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MUNTICIPAL GAS UTTLITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IGHWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes tc Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Risk Management, Continued

The Utility has recorded $34,067 and $24,717 in accounts payable for its share of
these unpaid claims at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Utilities are a member of the Iowa Municipalities Workers’ Compensation
Association (the Association), which was established to provide members a group
self-insurance program for their workers' compensation liabilities. Approximately
470 governmental entities participate in the Association. A board of trustees
consisting of seven members is elected by the members participating in the
Association to manage and conduct the business and affairs of the Association.

The following table sets forth summarized financial data of the Association as of and
for its year ended June 30, 2004.

Cash and cash equivalents and investments $22,960,768
Receivables Bl4,103
Other assets 668,545

Total assets 824,443 416
Total liabilities 18,559,769
Total equity 5,883,647

Total liabilities and equity 424,443,416
Total revenues 663,637
Total expenses 2,425,524
Distribution to members 0

Net decrease in equity 5(1,761,887)

There have been no instances where the amount of settlement has exceeded available
coverage in the past three years. There has been no significant reduction in
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Utility has natural gas transportation contracts with a pipeline, which expire in
2005 and 2025. Total payments include transportation charges and commodity
charges. Minimum transportation payments for 2005 are expected to be
approximately $1,342,350 at current rates.

Subsegquent Events

On March &, 2005 the Board of Trustees approved the redemption of the outstanding
Series 1992 Revenue Bonds with the issuance of $1,355,000 Gas Utility Revenue
Refunding Capital Loan Notes and cash reserves.

(Continued)
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CPAy & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Gas Utility

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Gas Utility of Cedar Falls,
Towa (the Utility), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 30, 2005. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; Chapter 11 of the Code of Towa; and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. "

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted a certain immaterial instance of non-
compliance that is described in Part I of the accompanying Schedule of Findings.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility’s operations for the year ended
December 31, 2004, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
audit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes. There were o prior year statutory comments and recommendations.

PEQOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by
error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of the Utility in a separate letter dated March 30, 2005. There were no prior year
reportable conditions.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and the customers of the Utility and other parties to whom the Utility may report.
This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of
the Utility during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the
above matters, we shall be pieased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

@«M L7

Dubugue, lowa
March 30, 2005




CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES - MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY
CEDAR FALLS, JOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor’s Results:

(a) An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements.

(b) No material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were noted.

(c) The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial
statements.

Part II: Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting:

11-A-04

1I1-B-04

II-C-04

0-D-04

{1I-E-04

[I-F-04

-G-04

iI-H-04

11-I-04

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been approved by
the Utility’s Board of Trustees. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution
were not exceeded during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Certified Budeet - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2004, did not
exceed the amounts budgeted.

Questionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures that we believe may fail to
meet the requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion
dated April 25, 1979,

Travel Expense - No expenditures of Utility money for travel expenses of spouses of
Utility officials or empioyees were noted.

Business Transactions - No business transactions between the Utility and Utility
officials or employees were noted.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Utility officials and employees is in
accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed
annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minntes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Board minutes but were not.

Deposits and_Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of Iowa and the Utility’s
investment policy wers noted.

Revenue Bonds - We noted no instances of non-compliance with the provisions of the
Utility’s revenue bond resolutions.
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CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES - MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY
CEDAR FALLS, JOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Notice of Public Hearing — Notice of public hearing for public improvements with a
total cost to the Utility of $25,000 or more is to be published not less than four nor
more than twenty days prior to the public hearing in accordance with Chapters 384.102
and 362.3 of the Code of lowa. We noted several notices of public hearing that were
published more than twenty days prior to the public hearing.

Recommendation — We recommend that the Utility examine the procedures in place
regarding publication of notice of public hearing to ensure that they are in compliance
with the requirements of the Code of lowa in the future.

Response — We will change the process we have been using of counting clear days for
notices. Going forward, we will count calendar days but not include the day of
publication.

Conclusion — Response accepted.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities ~ Municipal Water Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Water Utility of Cedar Falls, Jowa (the
Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial staternents are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; Chapter 11 of the Code of Jowa; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards and
provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statemnents are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 30, 2005, on
our consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 throngh 5 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

é%{fa@ Lot

March 30, 2005
Dubuque, Jowa
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Our discussion and analysis of the Municipal Water Utility (Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls,
Towa’s financial performance provides an overview of the Utility’s financial activities for the
year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. Please read this information in conjunction with the
financial statements and the accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this
section.

Financial Highlights

» The Utility’s net assets increased as a result of operations. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
total assets were $15,428,866 and $14,688,715, respectively, and total liabilities were $632,114
and $226,836, respectively, resulting in net assets of $14,796,752 and $14,461,879, respectively.

e Operating revenues decreased 2.2 percent to $1,770,841 while operating expenses increased
10.4 percent to $2,127,701 in 2004. Operating revenues increased 6.1 percent to $1,810,804
while operating expenses increased 1.1 percent to $1,926,538 in 2003.

o During the year, the Utility had an operating loss of $356,860. This compares to last year,
when the Utility had operating loss of $115,734.

QOverview of the Financial Statements

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the financial
statements, and the MD&A represents management’s examination and analysis of the Utility’s
financial condition and performance. The financial statements report information about the
Utility using full accrual accounting methods as utilized by similar entities in the private sector.

The balance sheets include the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provide information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors
(liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Utility and
assessing the liquidity and flexibility of the Utility.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets present the results of the Utility’s
activities (revenues and expenses) over the course of the fiscal year and can provide information
about the Utility’s recovery of its costs. Retail rates to purchase water are based on rates
established by the Board of Trustees based on operating costs, debt service requirements, and
anticipated capital needs. A fundamental objective of this rate model is to provide adequate
revenue to cover all expenses.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

The statements of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operations, capital and related financing activities and investing activities. This
statermnent provides answers to such questions as where did the cash come from, what was cash
used for, and what was the change in cash balances during the reporting period.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are
essential to a full understanding of data provided in the statements. The notes present
information about the Utility’s accounting policies, significant account balances and activities,
material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.

Condensed Finapcial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for
management, monitoring and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheet Information

2004 2003
Current assets $ 2,808,242 $ 2,774,884
Capital assets, net 11,645,324 10,936,951
Other noncurrent assets 975,300 076,880
Total assets $15,428.866 $14.688.715
Current liabilities : 228,574 181,583
Noncurrent liabilities 403,540 ' 45,253
Long-term debt - -
Total labilities $ 632,114 3. 226836
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 11,645,324 10,936,951
Restricted - -
Unrestricted 3,151,428 3,524,928

Total net assets $14.796.752 $14 461.879
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, [OWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Condensed Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2004 2003
Sales of water $ 1,719,548 $ 1,757,121
Other 51,293 53.683
Total operating revenues 1,770.841 1.810.804
System operation and maintenance 874,180 781,276
Depreciation 374,758 328,863
Service and administrative 878.763 816.399
Total operating expenses 2.127.701 1.926,538
Operating income (loss) (356.860) (115.734)
Interest income 30,965 65,916
Other, net 112.695 63.901
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) 143.660 129.817
Income (loss) before contributions ___ (213.200) 14.083
Capital contributions 548.073 660,722
_Change in net assets 334,873 674,805
Net assets, beginning of year 14.461.879 13.787.074
Net assets, end of year $14,796,752 $14.461.879

Financial Analysis

Current assets increased 1.2 percent in 2004 primarily due to the following factors: cash and
cash equivalents increased 4.2 percent primarily due to an increase in customer accounts
receivable; and a 3.6 percent decrease in materials & supplies inventory. Customer accounts
receivable increased 4.3 percent due to 2004 collections being approximately 3.8 percent less
than 2003 collections, 2004 billings being approximately 2.2 percent less than 2003 billings, and
2004 write-offs being approximately 44 percent more that 2003 write-offs. Materials & supplies
decreased 3.6 percent due to an 87.8 percent increase in capital installations of water meters and
a 78.0 percent increase in water main maintenance supply usage.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA.
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Management Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2004 and 2003

Current lizbilities increased 25.9 percent in 2004 primarily due to 47.0 percent increase i all
accounts payable. The accounts payable open items increased 62.0 percent primarily due to an
increase in purchases and stockpiling of fill sand and roadstone and a 70.0 percent increase in
street repairs from 2003.

Noncurrent liabilities increased 7.9 percent in 2004 due to the recording of accrued retirement
insurance benefits totaling approximately $45,000 that employees are entitled to receive upon
retirement with 20 years of continuous service and at age 55 and an additional accrual of accrued
severance of approximately $13,000. They also increased due to the receipt of proceeds of
$300,000 for the Well #2 abandonment that are reserved for future construction before December
31, 2005.

System operation and maintenance expenses increased 11.9 percent in 2004 primarily due to the
cleaning of three water towers costing approximately $8,100, a 14.7 percent increase in well
house maintenance, and approximately an $11,000 increase in purchased power due to an
approximately 11.0 percent increase in pumpage and the Municipal Electric Utility rate increase
in January 2004. Also, the recording of accrued retirement insurance benefits resulted in an
increase of approximately $32,000 and an additional accrual of severance of approximately
$11,000 to systern operation and maintenance eXpenses.

Service and administrative expenses increased 7.5 percent in 2004 primarily due to an increase
of approximately $56,000 in employee insurance costs; a 32.7 percent decrease in customer
rebates related to the demand side management program, and an increase of approximately 9.9
percent in rent to the Municipal Electric Utility for office fumiture and equipment. The increase
in rent relates to a telephone system upgrade of approximately $28,000; computer purchases of
approximatety $132,000, and approximately $142,000 for customer billing software owned by
the Municipal Electric Utility and placed in service during 2003. Also, the recording of accrued
retirement insurance benefits resulted in an increase of approximately $13,000 to service and
administrative expenses.

Tnterest income decreased 53.0 percent in 2004 primarily due to the arbitrage rebate of interest
income to the IRS of $38,153 for excess earnings on the bond reserve fund for the 1994 Water
Revenue Bonds refunded in 2003.

Capital contributions decreased 17.0 percent in 2004 due to capital contributions being based on
new developments requiring distribution extensions and there being approximately twice as
many projects in 2003.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2004 and 2003

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Net capital assets represent 75.5 percent of total assets for the Utility. Net capital assets
increased 6.5 percent from the prior year primarily due to distribution extensions totaling
approximately $812,000 in 2004. Additional detail on the change in capital assets can be found
in Note 4.

On May 13, 2003, the Utility expended $954,177 for the redemption of the outstanding Series
1994 revenue bonds and related accrued interest. This redemption leaves the Utility with no
outstanding debt at December 31, 2004.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa}

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2004 and 2003

Assebs 2004 2003
Capital assets: {note 3)
Capital assets, in service 8 17,276,291 $ 16,048,676
Legs accumulated depreciation 5,766,778 5,493,839
11,509,513 10,554,837
Construction work in progress 135,811 382,114
Net capital assets 11,64%,324 10,936,951
Noncurrent assebts:
Noncurrent Iinvestments: {(note 2)
Unrestricted 975,300 576,880
Total noncurrent investments 975,300 976,880
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 1) 612,855 588,422
Investments {(note Z2) i,850,000 1,850,000
Receivables:
Customer accounts, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $3,528 in 2004 and $2,800 in 2003 175,040 168,427
Interest 38,301 35,561
Cther 23,077 22,650
Material and supplies 87,741 91,056
Prepayments and other 21,228 18,768
Total current assets 2,808,242 2,774,884
Total assets S 15,428,866 § 14,688,715

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



ILiabilities 200

s
b
L]
[
L

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable % 148,216 $ 100,816
Accrued wages and vacations 74,056 659,911
Cther accrued expenses 6,302 10,856
Total current liabilities 228,574 181,583
Noncurrent liabilities: (note 4}

Daferred credits 300,000 -
Other liabilities 103,540 45,253
403,540 45,253

Total liabilities 632,114 226,836

Net Assets

Invested in captial assets, net of related debt 11,645,32¢ 14,936,951
Unrestricted 3,151,428 3,524,828
Total net assets 14,796,752 14,461,87%

Total ligkhilities and net assets g 15,428,866 § 14,688,715
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MUNTCIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

vears ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Operating revenues:
Sales of water:
Residential s 1,269,924 8 1,302,390
Industrial 26,770 29,591
Commercial 293,522 307,045
Governmental (note 7) 101,467 88,695
Interdepartmental 27,465 29,400
Total sales of water 1,719,548 1,757,121
Other operating revenues 51,283 53,683
Total operating revenues 1,770,841 1,810,804
Operating expenses
Production:
Purchased power from affiliated utility 107,158 96,025
Other 185,623 159,315
Distribution 581,359 525,932
Depreciation 374,758 328,863
Customer accounts 174,664 171,049
Customer service and information expenses 45,965 57,66%
Sales 14,183 16,128
Administrative and general 583,062 515,776
Taxes other Chan income taxes 60,889 55,777
Total operating expenses 2,127,701 1,926,538
Operating income {(loss) {356,860) {115,734)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 30,565 £5,5%16
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments {1,580} (23,120)
Miscellaneous revenue (expense), net (note 7} 94,379 93,180
Interest expense on long-term debt 15,896 (6,159)
Total nonoperating revenues {(expenses) 143,660 129,817
Tncome {(loss) before contributions (213,200) 14,083
Capital contributions 548,073 660,722
Change in net assets 334,873 674,805
Net assets, beginning of year 14,461,879 13,787,074
Net assets, end of year S 14,796,752 § 14,461,879

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY QF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar ¥Falls,
Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers 5
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to emplioyees

Net cash provided by operating activities

cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Principal payments on long-term debt

Contributions from contractors

Acquisition, construction and removal cost of
capital assets

Droceeds from sale of capital assets

Reimbursement of utility constructiom costs

proceeds from grant for capital comstruction

Interest paid

Net cash used in capital and related f£inancing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from maturities of investment securities
Purchase of investment securities
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (note 1) $

Iowa)

2004 2003
1,868,583 3 1,547,965
(1,131,768) {1,086,362}

(525,447} (504,109)

231,370 357,494

- {935, 000)

7,580 1,356
(650, 800) (502,827}
124,991 831
3,187 18,472
300,000 -
(38,153) (45,327}

(253,318) (1,462,488}
1,850,000 3,830,000
{1,850, 000) (3,850,000}

66,378 53,806
66,378 33,806
24,433 (1,671,188)

588,422 1,659,610

612,855 § 588,422

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, TOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

vears Ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Reconciliarion of coperating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities
Operating loss 8 {356,860) § {115, 734)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
pepreciation of capital assets 174,758 328,863
Other income related to operating activities 94,379 93,180
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable {7,040) 43,469
Decrease in materials and supplies 3,318 1,538
Increase in prepayments and other (2,460) (2,247)
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable 47,400 (13,136)
fncrease {(decrease) in accrued wages and vacation 4,145 (17,680}
Decrease in other accrued expenses {¢,554) (6,008}
Increase in accrued severance 58,287 45,253
Net cash provided by operating activities - 211,370 % 357,494
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Cantributions from contractors in aid of construction g 540,513 § 659,366

See accompanying notes te financial statements.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{n Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a)

(b}

{c)

Organization and Basis of Accounting

The Municipal Water Utility (Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is a
component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The Utility's rates are set
by its governing board. The Utility Ffollows the accounting practices
prescribed through the Federal Energy Reqgulatory Commission for regulated

utilities and proprietary fund accounting for goveramental entities under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Utility, as a regulated utility, foliows the Code of Federal Regulations
Title 18 -~ Conservation of Power and Water Resources, Chapter I - Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission, Department of Energy.

In accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
{GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the Utility applies only Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board cpinions, and

Becounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 192890.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are stated at original cost, including an allowance for funds used
during construction. The allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC)
represents the estimated cost of funds nsed for censtruction purposes. AFUDC
was capitalized on utility construction at a rate of 5.88% in 2004 and 2003.
Depreciation of capital assets in service is calculated on a composite
straight-line method at rates based on estimated service lives and salvage
values of several classes of capital assets. The range of estimated service
iives for the classes of capital assets are as follows: infrastructure - 20
to 70 years, buildings and improvements - 30 to 45 years, and eguipment - 20
to 85 years. The depreciation provisions were equivalent to an overall
composite rate of 2.3% and 2.2% of depreciable assets for 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. At the
time capital assets are retired, the original cost of the asset plus cost of
removal less salvage are charged to accumulated depreciation.

Cash and Investments

The Utility’s deposits at Decemher 31 were entirely covered by federal depository
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of Iowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the
depositories to ensure there will be no loss of public funds.

Investments are stated at their fair value on the balance sheets. The Utility's
investments stated at fair value reflect quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date, for U.S. Treasury and government agency debt securities. The cost
of certificates of deposit approximates fair value.

The Utility considers all highly liguid investments with maturity of three months
or less when purchased to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of
cash flows. Included in cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2004 and
2003 was &4250,000 for amounts invested in the Iowa Public Agency Investment
Trust (IPAIT).

{Continued)
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MUNTCIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
hDecember 31, 2004 and 2003

(1} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(¢) Cash and Invesiments, Continued

The Utility's cash and cash equivalents can be identified on the balance sheet as
follows:

2004 2003

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 4612, 855 $588,422
rRestricted - cash - -

Total cash and cash equivalents $612, 855 $588,422
(d) Iaventories

Materials and supplies are valued at average cost. Inventories are recorded as
an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed.

(e) Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues include revenues resulting from the sale of water and service
revenues. Operating expenses include expenses for power production,
distribution, depreciation, customer accounts, customer service and
informational, sales, and administrative and general. Nonoperating revenuas
and expenses include those derived from capital and related financing
activities, noncaptial financing activities, and investing activities.

Revenues from the sale of water are based on billing rates, which are applied to
customers’' consumption of water. The Utility records estimated unbilled
revenue at the end of accounting periods. Revenues earned, but not yet billed
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, were £69,267 and 471,987, respectively, and
are recorded in customer accounts receivable.

{f} Bond Issue Costs

Unamortized bond issue costs are amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method.

(g) Capital Contributions

Contributions in aid of construction represent the actual cost of property
contributed to the Utility and nonrefundable payments from consumers, which
are used to partially offset the cost of the construction of additicnal
capital assets.

() Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the
financial statements. Net assets inmvested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used for acquisitionm,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments.

The Utility’s policy is to £irst apply restricted resources when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.

{Continued)
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MUNTCIPAL WATER UTILITY COF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(i) Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principals generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

{2) Investments

The Utility is authorized by statute to invest public funds not currently needed for
operating expenses in obligations of the United States govermment, its agencies
and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at
federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of Trustees, prime
eligible bankers acceptances, certain high rated commercial paper; perfected
repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment
companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement
certificates of a drainage district.

The Utility classifies its investments into categories, which present an indication
of the level of credit risk in relation to the nature of the investment and the
custadial provisions. Category 1 securities are insured, registered, held by the
Utility, or held by the Utility's agent in the Utility's name. Category 2 denotes
uninsured and unregistered securities that are held by counterparty’s Lrust
department or agent in the Utility’s name. Category 3 specifies uninsured and
unregistered securities that are held by counterparty’'s trust department or agent
in other than the Utility’s name. Investments in IPAIT are not subject to risk
categorization. Investments in IPAIT are recorded with cash and cash equivalents.
The Utility’s investments are classified as follows at December 31, 2004 and 2003
and carrying value equals fair value:

Investment Category 2004 2003

Certificates of deposit 1 1,850,000 $1,850,000

U.8. government and agency securities 2 975,300 976,880
$2.825,300 $2.826,880

The Utility’s investments can be identified on the balance sheets as follows:

2004 2003
Current assets:
Investments $1,850,000 1,850,000
Noncurrent investments:
Restricted - -
Unrestricted 975,300 976,880
52,825,300 52,826,880

{Continued)
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY CF CEDAR FALLS, ICWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31,

Capital Assets

2004 and 2003

A summary of capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 200¢ and 2003

follows:
Additions beletions
and and
Beginning Transfers  Transfers Ending
2004 Balance in Out Balance
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land 5 63,581 ] - 5 - $ 63,581
Construction work in progress 182,114 1,01%L,862 1,258,165 i35,811
Total capital assets, not 445,685 1,011,862 1,258,165 195,382
being deprecilated
capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 15,430,976 1,206,743 29,833 15,607,886
Buildings and improvements 229,211 6,871 718 235,364
Equipment 324,908 44,552 - 369,460
Total capital assets 15,985,085 1,258,166 30,551 17,212,710
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation (5,493,B839) (374,758) 101,829 {5,766,778)
Toral capital assets, belng
depreciated, net 10,491,256 883,408 {71,268) 11,445,932

Capital assets, net

2003

Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction work in progress
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
BEquipment
Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

$10,536,851

51,895,270

1,186,897 $131,645, 32¢

5 63,581 $ - 5§ - 5 63,581
6,627 1,156,573 781,492 382,114
70,208 1,156,979 781,482 445,695
14,730,846 766,039 65,909 15,430,978
228,343 868 - 228,211
310,528 14,585 208 324,908
15,269,717 781,492 66,114 15,985,095
{5,225,648) (328,B863) 64,672 {5,493,839)
10,040,062 452,623 1,442 10,491,256
510,110,227 £1,609,608 £782,934 $10,936,951

(Continued)
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(3 Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Noncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was as

follows:
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
2004 Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Accrued severance S 45,253 § 58,287 & - g 103,540 % -
Deferred credits - 300,000 - 300,000 -
Noncurrent liabilities 3 45,253 5 358,287 § - 5 403,540 5 -
2003
Series 1094 revenue bonds § 935,000 § - $ 935,000 3 - 8 -
Accrued severance - 4% ,253 - 45,253

Noncurrent liabilities § 935,000 5 45,253 $ 935,000 S 45,253 -

On May 13, 2003, the Utility expended $954,177 for the redemption of the outstanding

Series 1994 revenue bonds. The Utility used their own funds to extinguish the
debt.

In January 2004, the Utility received $300,000 as part of the agreement with the Jowa
Comprehensive Petroleum Underground Storage Tank Fund Board regarding the site
clean up of fuel-contaminated soil surrounding a previously replaced underground
gasoline storage tank. As part of the agreement, a well was abandoned and the
funds received are to be used for the replacement of this well or on
system improvements to increase water production capacity. Any funds not spent
by December 31, 2006, must be returned to the State of Iowa.

Pension Plan

The Utility contributes to the Towa public Employees Retirement System {IPERB), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of Iowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits, which are
established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a
publicly available financial report that inciudes financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing IPERS,
P.0. Box 09117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered salary and the
Utility is required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll. Contribution
requirements are established by State statute. The Utility’'s contributions for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, were $50,737; $46,444; and
$31g,083; respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Income Tax Status

The Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes under the applicable tax
codes. ’

Related Party Transactions

The Utility provides water service to the ¢ity of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Operating
revenues from the service provided amounted to $23,808 and $6,448 in 2004 and
2003, respectively.

The Utility also provides billing and collection services to the City for the City's
sanitary sewer system and garbage and refuse service. Revenues from the service
provided amcunted to $87,600 and $85,680 in 2004 and 2003, respectively, and are
recorded in miscellanecus nonoperating revenue.

(Continued}
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Related Party Transactions, Continued

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Utility earmed a management fee
of %1,690 from the Municipal Communications Utility for administration, finance,
human resources and legal services, which 1is recorded in miscellaneous
nonoperating revenue.

Risk Management

the Cedar Falls Municipal Electriec, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities
(Utilities) are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees;
and natural disasters. The Utilities purchase commercial insurance for claims
related to these risks. The Utilities maintain a risk management account to
account for risks related to their self-funded medical insurance plan. The risk
management account provides employee health insurance coverage for the Utilities’
employees and participating retirees. The Utilities self-fund the first $60,000 of
claims per individual and %2,013,300 in aggregate for all participants and have
insurance for claims above this amount.

Liabilities of the risk managemenit account are reported when it is probable that a
1oss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Liabilities include an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNR) which represent estimates of the eventual loss on claims arising
prior to year-end. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past
two years are as follows:

2004 2003
Unpaid claims, beginning of year 5 112,350 ] 181,700
current year claims and changes in estimates 1,593,270 1,145,395
Claim payments (1,543,395} (1,218,749)
Unpaid claims, end of year § 162,225 5 112,350

The Utility has recorded $14,600 and 510,111 in accounts payable for its share of
these unpaid claims at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Utilities are a member of the Iowa Municipalities Workers’' Compensation
nesociation (the Association), which was established to provide members a group
self-insurance program for their workers’ compensation liabilities. Approximately
470 governmental entities participate in the Assogiation. A beoard of trustees
consisting of seven members is elected by the members participating in the
Association to manage and conduct the business and affairs of the Association.

The following table sets forth summarized financial data of the Association as of and
for its year ended June 30, 2004.

Cash and cash equivalents and investments 22,960,768
Receivables 814,303
Other assets 668,545
Total assets $24,443,416
Total liabilities 18,559,769
Total eguity 5,883,647
Total liabilities and equity $24,443,416
Total revenues 663,637
Total expenses 2,425,524
Distribution to members -
Vet decrease in egquity $(1,761,887)

{Continued)
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OFfF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes. to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

() Risk Management, Continued

There have been no instances where the amount of mettlemen:t has exceeded available
coverage in the past three years. There has been no significant reduction ia
insurance coverage in the prior year.

(9) Commitments and Contingencies

As of December 31, 2004, the Utility was involved in several construction projects
with an estimated cost to complete of approximately 58,044.

{10) Subsequent Event
Effective January 1, 2005, the Board of Trustees approved a general water rate

Tncrease. The average rate increase is approximately 9.0% for all of the customer
Classes.

{Continued)
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Water Utility

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Water Utility of Cedar
Falls, lowa (the Utility), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, and have issued our
report thereon dated March 30, 2005. We conducted our audits in accordence with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa; and the stendards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted a certain immaterial instance of non-
compliance that is described in Part II of the accompanying Schedule of Findings.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility’s operations for the year ended
December 31, 2004, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
audit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not ail
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes. There were no prior year statutory comments and recommendations.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
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Internal Coutrol Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the interal control that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstaternents caused by
error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of the Utility in a separate letter dated March 30, 2005. There were no prior year
reportable conditions.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and the customers of the Utility and other parties to whom the Utility may report.
This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of
the Utility during the course of our audit. Shouid you have any questions concerning any of the
above matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

@M Le7

Dubuque, Iowa
March 30, 2005




CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES ~ MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor’s Results:

(@) Anunqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements.

{(b) No material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were noted.

(c) The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial
statements.

Part I¥: Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting:

II-A-04

I1-B-04

II-C.04

{1-D-04

n-g-04

I-F-04

-G-04

II-H-04

H-1-04

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been approved by
the Utility’s Board of Trustees. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution
were not exceeded during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2004, did not
exceed the amounts budgeted.

Questionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures that we believe may fail to
meet the requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion
dated April 25, 1979.

Travel Expense - No expenditures of Utility money for travel expenses of spouses of
Utility officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions - No business transactions between the Utility and Utility
officials or employees were noted.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Utility officials and employees is in
accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed
annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Board minutes but were not.

Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of lowa and the Utility’s
investment policy were noted.

Revenue Bonds - We noted no instances of non-compliance with the provisions of the
Utility’s revenue bond resolutions.
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CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES — MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Notice of Public Hearing — Notice of public hearing for public improvements with a
total cost to the Utility of $25,000 or more is to be published not less than four nor
more than twenty days prior to the public hearing in accordance with Chapters 384.102
and 362.3 of the Code of Iowa. We noted several notices of public hearing that were
published more than twenty days prior to the public hearing.

Recommendation — We recommend that the Utility examine the procedures in place
regarding publication of notice of public hearing to ensure that they are in compliance
with the requirements of the Code of lowa in the future.

Response — We will change the process we have been using of counting clear days for
notices. Going forward, we will count calendar days but not include the day of
publication.

Conclusion — Response accepted.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Communications Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Communications Utility of Cedar Falls,
Towa (the Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Jowa) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
the refated statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended,
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinjon on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; Chapter 11 of the Code of Jowa; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroiler General of the United States. Those standards and
provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 30, 2005, on
our consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 5 is not a required part of the basic financial
statemnents, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

@M zu“f

March 30, 2005
Dubuque, Iowa
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Our discussion and analysis of the Municipal Communications Utility (Utility) of the City of
Cedar Falls, lowa’s financial performance provides an overview of the Utility’s financial
activities for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. Please read this information in
conjunction with the financial statements and the accompanying notes to the financial statements
that follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e The Utility’s net assets increased as a result of operations. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
total assets were $9,637,851 and $9,619,637, respectively, and total liabilities were $9,668,458
and $10,683,188, respectively, resulting in deficit net assets of $30,607 and $1,063,551,
respectively.

e Operating revenues increased 5.1 percent to $7,047,702 while operating expenses increased
15.1 percent to $5,838,527 in 2004. Operating revenues increased 17.9 percent to $6,456,983
while operating expenses decreased 5.1 percent to $5,07 1,403 in 2003.

e During the year, the Utility had operating income of $1,209,175. This compares to last year,
when the Utility had operating income of $1,385,5 80.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the financial
statements, and the MD&A represents management’s examination and analysis of the Utility’s
financial condition and performance. The financial statements report information about the
Utility using full accrual accounting methods as utilized by similar entities in the private sector.

The balance sheets include the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provide information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors
(liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Utility and
assessing the liquidity and flexibility of the Utility.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets present the results of the Utility’s
activities (revenues and expenses) over the course of the fiscal year and can provide information
about the Utility’s recovery of its costs. Retail rates to purchase communications services are
based on rates established by the Board of Trustees based on operating costs, debt service
requirements, and anticipated capital needs. A fundamental objective of this rate model is to
provide adequate revenue to cover all expenses.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

The statements of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operations, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing activities
and investing activities. This statement provides answers to such questions as where did the cash
come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balances during the
reporting period.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are
essential to a full understanding of data provided in the statements. The notes present
information about the Utility’s accounting policies, significant account balances and activities,
material risks, and obligations.

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for
management, monitoring and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheet Information

2004 2003
Current assets S 1,347,447 $ 1,181,056
Capital assets, net 7,335,051 7,459,727
Other noncurrent assets 955,353 978.854
Total assets $ 9637851 $ 6.619.637
Current habilities 1,566,983 1,728,244
Noncurrent liabilities 66,178 26,425
Long-term debt 8,035,297 8,928,519
Total liabilities $ 9,668,458 $10.683.188
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt (1,590,247) (1,343,792)
Restricted 951,333 950,083
Unrestricted 608.307 {669,842)

Total net assets (deficit) $ (30.607) $(1.063.551)
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, [OWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Jowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Condensed Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2004 2003
Cable television § 3,415,155 $ 3,296,322
High speed data communications 3.632.547 3.160.661
Total operating revenues 7.047.702 6,456,983
System operation and maintenance 3,282,640 2,775,413
Depreciation 1,110,541 1,042,301
Service and administrative 1.445.346 1.253.689
Total operating expenses 5.838.527 5.071.403
Operating income 1.209.175 1,385.580
Interest expense (396,920) (426,360)
Other, net 220,689 21.900
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) (176.231) (404.460)
Change in net assets 1,032,944 881,120
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year (1,063.551) (2.044,571)
Net assets (deficit), end of year $ __ (30,607) $(1,063.551)

Financial Analysis

Current liabilities decreased 9.3 percent in 2004 primarily from the $181,779 decrease in due-to
affiliated utilities. This account includes activity between utilities sharing a pooled cash account
representing lending/borrowing arrangements when cash shortfalls occur in an affiliated utility.
Current liabilities also changed by an increase in accounts payable of approximately $41,688
related to inventory, capital, and advertising surrounding the launch of HDTV in June of 2004
and continued development of residential and commercial areas of the City requiring expansion
of the infrastructure and the need for material and supplies on hand. This is also reflected in the
$28,199 increase in Materials and Supplies Inventory during 2004.

Non-current liabilities increased 150.4 percent in 2004 primarily due to the accrual of severance
and retirement health insurance benefits and a lability for Customer Advances for Construction.
Advance lease payments are now all current liabilities as the agreement terms end in 2005.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Jowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Customer Advances for Construction did not exist during 2003, but became policy and procedure
during 2004 and accruals were recorded.

Total net assets (deficit) decreased 97.0 percent in 2004 primarily due to operating revenues
increasing approximately $590,719 due primarily to increases in the number of subscribers.
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is a deficit balance due to capital assets being
funded by debt. Capital assets are depreciated between 7 to 20 years and the debt repayment is
scheduled through 2016. Capital assets are depreciating at a larger proportion than the debt
repayment schedule. Unrestricted net assets is a positive balance as a reflection of the Utility’s
net income during 2003 and 2004. The Utility increased rates in our product lines, adjusted
product lines and implemented cost cutting measures throughout 2002, 2003 and 2004 which is
reflective in the increase in net assets for 2004.

Cable television operating revenues increased 3.6 percent in 2004. An increase in the number of
subscribers and the introduction of High Definition TV services primarily account for the
increase in cable television operating revenues.

High speed data communications operating revenues increased 14.9 percent in 2004. An
increase in the number of subscribers partially accounts for the increase. In January 2004 the
discount provided to customers with bundled communication services and previously charged
against high speed data communications revenues was reclassified as a cable TV discount and is
now charged against basic revenues, this also accounts for the increase in high speed data
revenues. Basic Service revenues decreased 24.9 percent in 2004 primarily due to this change in
classification of the volume service discount. Also, high speed data communications revenues
billed to other communities for transport and access has decreased approximately $49,000 due to
the loss of customers. However, Bulk Account revenues increased by $46,000 during 2004.

System operation and maintenance expenses increased 18.2 percent in 2004 primarily due to the
following: High Speed Data Internet Access Expense increased $56,041 or 18.2% and Cable TV
programming costs increased $255,895 or 14.9% during 2004. This increase was driven by
increased customers being served, increases in the amount of bandwidth high speed internet
customers are using and the continuing increase of programming costs which recently have been
increasing at a rate of 8 — 15 percent annually. Customer premise wiring expense increased
primarily due to an increase in payroll being assigned to this account. The increase in customers
drives the growth in payroll costs associated with customer premise wiring, Plant operations
administrative expense increased approximately $191,657 in 2004 due to payment of employee
bonuses in April and increased employee health insurance and benefit costs. Further, an $83,795
variance in Research and Development due to the cost of conducting both a feasibility study and
market research study on Voice Over Internet Protocol contributes to this increase. Interest
expense decreased 6.9 percent in 2004 primarily due to higher principal payments on long-term
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2004 and 2003

debt and less interest paid in 2004. Other Non-operating Income increased by $198,790 during
2004 primarily due to over $190,000 in TIF monies received from the City of Cedar Falls for
industrial/commercial development related infrastructure expansion.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets represent 76.1 percent of total assets for the Utility. Net capital assets decreased
1.7 percent from the prior year primarily due to higher depreciation than additions of
infrastructure. Additional detail on the change in capital assets can be found in Note 4.

The Utility’s total debt service in 2004, excluding the outstanding loan with the Municipal
Electric Utility, was $847,641 compared to $3858,755 during 2003.

The Utility has an outstanding loan with the Municipal Electric Utility totaling $3,093,090 and
$3,403,090 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Additional detail on the outstanding
loan can be found in Note 5.
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MUNTCIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedax Falls, Iowa;

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2004 and 2003

Aszets 2004 2003
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 1) 44,293 & -
Receivables:
Customer accounts, iess allowance for doubtful
accounts of $22,011 in 2004 and $17,100 in 2003 866,438 B0G,439
Interest 14,407 10,821
Other 83,475 59,028
Material and supplies 242,291 214,091
Prepayments and other 26,373 18,940
Restricted - cash {(note 2} 70,170 70,637
Toktal current assets 1,347,447 1,181,456
Noncurrent assebs:
Noncurrent investmentis: {note 3)
Restricted {(note 2) 903,000 903,000
Total noncurrent investments 903,000 503,000
Capital assets: (note 4)
Capital assets, in service 13,466,271 12,633,933
Less accumulated depreciation 6,197,308 5,258,759
7,268,963 7,375,174
Construction work in progress 66,088 84,553
Net captial assets 7,335,051 7,459,727
Deferred costs, net of amortization 52,353 75,854
Teotal noncurrent assets 8,220,404 8,438,581
Total assets 9,618,637

See accompanying neotes to financial statements.

9,637,851 %




Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to affiliated utilities {note 8)
advance lease payments (note 5)
Accrued wages and vacatbion
Accrued interest
Other accrued lisbilities
current installments of long-term debt (note 5)
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities: (note 5}
advance lease payments
Customer advances for construction
Other nencurrent liabilities
Long-term debt, less current installments
fotal noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted - bond indentures (note 2)
Unrestricted

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets

2004 2003

382,964 $§ 341,275

- 181,778

26,425 29,587
90,980 86,818
72,443 79,139
104,171 124,645
890,000 875,000
1,566,983 1,728,244
- 26,425°

30,239 -
35,239 -
8,035,237 8,928,518
8,101,475 8,954,544
9,668,458 10,683,188
(1,5590,247) (1,343,792)
851,333 950,083
608,307 {665,842)
(30,607} {1,063,551}
5,637,851 % 9,619,637
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{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Agsets

Years ended December 31,

Operating revenues:
Cable system revenues
Local private line revenue
Data services revenue
Network access revenue
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
plant specific and programming
Deprecication
plant nonspecific
Customer operations
Sales
Corporate operations (ncte B)
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Miscellaneous revenue
Interest expense on long-term debt

(expense), net

(note 5)

2004 and 2003

Interest expense on affiliated note payable (note 5 and 8)

Total noncoperating revenues

Change in net assets

(expenses)

Net assets {deficit}, beginning of year

Net assets {(deficit), end of year

See accompanying nctes to financial statements.

2004 2003
3 3,415,155 3,296,322
140,775 127,204
3,321,158 2,902,817
170,614 130,640
7,047,702 6,456,983
2,632,520 2,311,130
1,110,541 1,042,301
650,120 464,283
410,621 392,818
250,554 205,022
784,171 655,849
5,838,527 5,071,403
1,209,175 1,385,580
20,791 16,938
199,858 4,962
{293,854) {313,695}
(103, 0656) {112, 565)
{176,231} (404,460)
1,032,544 981,120
(1,063,551) (2,044,671)
$ {3¢,607) & (1,063,551}
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowal

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers S
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees

2004 and 2003

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Advance from affiliated utility
Payments on advance from affiliated utility

Net cash used in noncapital fiancing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Principal payments on long-term debt

Proceeds from customer advances for construction

Refunds of customer advances for construction

Acquisition, construction and removal cost of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Reimbursement of utility construction costs

Interest paid

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from maturities of investment securities
Purchase of investment securities
Interest received

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (note 1) §

2004 2003
7,133,568 $ 6,418,294
(4,042,527} {3,505,141)
(669,377) (607, 037)
2,421,564 2,306,116
- 181,779
{181, 779) (384,196)
(181,779) (202,417)
(875,000) {830, 000)
36,339 -
(5,400) -
{1,089,623) (813,759)
200 7,032
110,908 39,032
(390,687) {249,173)
(2,213,263) (2,046,868)
903,000 838,000
(503, 000) {903, 000)
17,304 10,335
17,304 {54,665)
43,826 2,166
70,637 68,471
114,463 $ 70,637

See accompanying notes tc financial statements.



-9

MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

vears ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Operating income 1,209,175 £ 1,385,580
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation of capital assets 1,110,541 1,042,301
Other income related to operating activities 195,858 4,962
Amortization of advance lease payments (29,587) (29,588)
Increase in accounks receivable (84,4458) (14,062)
Increase in materials and supplies (28,199} (33,805)
Increase in prepayments and other {6,433) {2,469)
Increase {decrease} in accounts payable 41,688 (4,551)
Decrease in accrued wages and vacation (5,839) (31,163}
Decrease in other accrued liabilities {20,474) (11,289)
Iincrease in accrued severance 35,239 -
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,42%,5684 § 2,306,118

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MUNTCTPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

(1)} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

{1}

(c)

Organization and Basis of Accounting

The Municipal Communications Utility {Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa
is a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa {the City) created by
public referendum on October 1l, 1594 {date of inception). The Utility was
formed to engage in the development and operation of a broadband
communications system and the marketing of related services such as cable
television and high-speed data communications. The ptility's rates are set by
its governing board. The Utility follows the accounting practices prescribed
through the Federal Communications Commission for regulated utilities and
proprietary fund accounting for governmental entities undex accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Utility, as a regulated utility, follows the Code of rederal Regqulations
Title 47 -~ Telecommunication, Chapter I - Federal Communications Commission.

Tn accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Boaxd
(GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Punds and Other Governmental Bntities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the Utility applies only Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
gtatements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 15889.

Cash and Investiments

The Utility's deposits at December 31 were entirely covered by federal depository
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of Iowa. This chapter provides for additionmal assessments against the
depositories to ensure there will be no loss of public funds.

A1l investments held are certificates of deposit where cost approximates fair
value.

The Utility considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months
or less at purchase to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statements of
cash flows.

The Utility's cash and cash equivalents can be jdentified on the balance sheet as

follows:
2004 2003
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 44,293 3 -
Restricted - cash 70,170 76,637
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 114,463 §__70,637
Inventories
Materials and supplies are valued at average cost. Inventories are recorded as

an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed.

{Continued)
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOQWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa}

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{cd)

(e)

(£)

{g)

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are stated at original cost, including an allowance for funds used
during comstruction. The allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC)
represents the estimated cost of funds used for construction purposes. AFUDC
was capitalized on utility construction at a rate of 4.92% in 2004 and 2003.
Depreciation of capital assets in service is calculated on a composite
straight-line method at rates based omn estimated service lives and salvage
values of several classes of capital assets. The range of estimated sexvice
1ives for the classes of capital assets are as follows: infrastructure - 7 to
20 years and equipment -~ 20 years. The depreciation provision was equivalent
to an overall composite rate of 8.6% and 8.7% of depreciable assets for 2004
and 2003, respectively.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. At the
time capital assets are retired, the original cost of the asset plus cost of.
removal less salvage are charged to accumulated depreciation.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues include revenues resulting from the sale of products and

services. Operating expenses include expenses for plant specific and
programming, depreciation, plant nongpecific, customer operations, sales, and
corporate operations. Nonoperating revenues and expenses inciude those

derived from capital and related financing activities, noncapital financing
activities and investing activities.

Revenues are based on billing rates, which are applied to customers' consumption
of communications services. The Utility records estimated unbilled revenue at
the end of accounting periods. Revenues earned, but not bilied at December
31, 2004 and 2003, were $331,018B and $315,850, respectively. Advance local
private line operating lease rental payments received are deferred and
recognized on a straight-line basis over the period of service.

Deferred Costs

Organizational costs and other deferred costs are amortized over a five-year
period.

Debt discount, debt premium and debt issue costs are amortized over the life of
the debt using the effective interest method.

Nebt Assets

Net assets represent the difference between agsets and liabilities in the
financial statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any leong-term debt used for acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through external
restrictions imposed by ereditors, grantors, oY laws or regulations of other
governments.

The Utility’s policy is te £irst apply restricted resources when an expense is

incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.

{Continued)
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MUNTCTPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa}

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{h) Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principals generally accepted in the TUnited States of 2America reguires
management to make estimates and assumptions that aifect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

(i} Net Assets (Deficit}

The Utility had a deficit in net assets of 530,607 and %1,063,551 at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The Utility intends to eliminate these deficits
through future earnings of the utility.

(2) Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent monies set aside under the terms of the bond resolution
relating to the Series 1999 Capital Loan Notes. In accordance with the covenants
of the bond resclution, the monies are segregated inte various amounts.

The composition of these amounts at December 31 was as follows:

2004 2003
Current assets - restricted:

Bond and interest fund & 70,170 5 70,637
Restricted - cash 70,170 70,637

Noncurrent assets - restricted:
Bond reserve fund 403,000 403,000
Improvement and extension fund 500,000 500,000
Restricted noncurrent investments 903,000 903,000
Total restricted assets $973,170 $973,637

The monies deposited inte the various accounts have been invested in interest-bearing
securities as required by the bond resolution.  Amounts deposited in the above
funds may only be used for the purposes as set forth in the bond resclution and as
a result are classified as restricted.

(3) Investments

The Utility is authorized by statute to invest public funds not currently needed for
operating expenses in obligations of the United States government, ilts agencies
and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at
federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of Trustees, prime
eligible bankers acceptances, certain high rated commercial paper; perfected
repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment
companies; certain joint investment txusts; and warrants or improvement
certificates of a drainage district.

(Continued)
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(3 Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(3) ZInvestments, Continued

The Utility classifies its investments into categories, which present an indication
of the level of credit risk in relation to the nature of the investment and the
custodial provisions. Category 1 securities are insured, registered, held by the
Utility, or held by the Utility’'s agent in the Utility's name. Category 2 denctes
uninsured and unregistered securities that are held by counterparty’s trust
department or agent in the Utility’s name. Category 3 specifies uninsured and
unregistered securities that are held by counterparty’s trust department or agent
in other than the Utility’'s name. The Utility’s investments are classified as
follows at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and carrying value equals fair value:

Investment Category 2004 2003
Certificates of deposit 1 $ 903,000 § 503,000

(4) Capital Assets

A summary of capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

follows:
Additions Deleticns
and and
Beginning Transfeyrs Transfers Ending
2004 Balance in Qut Balance
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Construction work in progress 5 B4,553 $ 989,313 51,007,778 3% 66,088
Total capital assets, not 84,553 989,313 1,007,718 66,088
being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 12,410,537 989,264 175,440 13,224,421
Equipment 223,336 18,514 - 241,850
Total capital assets 12,633,933 1,007,778 175,440 13,466,271
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation {5,258,759) (1,110,438) 171,889 {6,197,308)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 7,375,174 (102,660} 3,551 7,268,963
Capital assets, net § 7,459,727 $ 8B6,653 531,011,323 § 7,335,051

{Continued)
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, ITowa}

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

{4) Capital Assets, Continued

2003
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Construction work in progress 5 74,373 % 788,209 % 778,029 3§ 84,553
Total capital assets, not 74,373 788,209 778,029 84,553

being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Infrastructure 11,735,740 769,923 95,066 12,410,597
Equipment 211,847 11,489 - 223,336
Total capital assets 11,947,587 781,412 85,066 12,633,933
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation (4,297,178} (1,042,301} 80,720 (5,258,759)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 7,880,405 (260,889) 14,346 7,375,174
Capital assets, net § 7,724,782 $§ 527,320 § 792,375 § 7,458,727

{5) Neoncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was as

follows:
Amounits
Due
Beginning Ending Within
2004 Balance additions Reductions Balance One Year
Series 1998 G.0. bonds 8 550,000 & - s 35,000 $ 515,000 5 35,000
Series 1999 G.0. bonds 555,000 - 40,000 515,000 4,000
Series 2002 G.0. bonds 1,985,000 - 255,000 1,736,000 260,000
Note pavable toc the
Municipal Blectric Ttility 3,403,090 - 310,000 3,053,080 310,060
Series 1999 capital
loan notes 3,316,000 - 235,000 3,075,000 245,000
Unamortized discount on debt {6,281) - (1,287} {4,974} -
Unamortized premium on debt 8,690 - 4,509 2,181 -
9,803,519 - 878,222 B,925,2587 890,000
Current installments of
long-term debt {875,000) (15,000} - {820, 000}
Long-term debt, iess
current installments §,928,519 (15,000} 878,222 8,035,287
Advance lease payments 56,012 - 29,887 26,425 26,425
Current advance
lease payments (29,587} - (3,162} {26,425)
Noncurrent advance
lease payments 26,425 - 26,425 -
Total noncurrent
liabilities 5 8,954,044 S (15,000)$_ 504,647 $8,035,237 8916 ,425

{Continued}
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Continpued

2003

Series 1998 ¢.0. bonds
Series 19%9% G.0. bonds
Series 2002 G.0O. bonds

Note payable to the

Municipal Electric Utility

Series 1999 capital
loan notes

Upnamortized discount
on debt

Unamortized premium on debt

current installments of
long-term debt
Long-term debt, less
current installments
Advance lease payments
Current advance
lease payments
Noncurrent advance
lease payments
Total noncurrent

TOWA
(A Component Unit of the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa)
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003
5 580,000 $ - ] 30,000 % 550,000 § 35,000
595,000 - 40,000 555,000 40,000
2,210,000 - 225,000 1,985,000 255,000
3,713,080 - 310,000 3,403,080 31¢,000
3,535,000 - 225,000 3,310,000 235,000
{7,649) - {1,388) (6,261} -
12,401 - 5,711 6,690 -
10,637,842 - 834,323 9,803,518 875,000
(830, 000) {45,000) - (B75,000)
5,807,842 {45,000) 834,323 B,928,519
85,600 - 29,588 56,012 29,587
(29,587) - - (29,587)
56,013 - 29,588 26,425
$ 9,863,855 8 (45,000} $ 863,911 $8,5954, 944 $904 , 587

liabilities

All general obligation (G.0.)

semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1.

bonds have been issued by the City on behalf of the
Utility. The (G.0.) bonds require anpual principal payments,

the term of the bonds are in a range between 2.5% and 5.50%.
service obligations over the remaining term of the bonds are as follows:

Series 1998

Series 1999

due December 1,
Interest rates throughout

and

The total debt

Series 2002

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amounkt
2005 5 35,000 S 24,338 £ 40,000 & 25,260 § 260,000 5 53,391
2006 35,000 22,797 45,000 23,440 275,000 46,891
2007 40,000 21,240 45,000 21,348 280,000 39,329
2008 46,000 19,440 50,000 19,210 295,000 30,922
2005-2013 365,000 60,820 276,000 58,723 620,000 33,050
2014 - - 65,000 3,347 - -

§ 515,000 §148,635 $515,000 $151,328 51,730,000 5203,590

the Series 1999 capital loan notes require annual
and semiannual interest payments,

principal payments, due December 1,
due June 1 and December 1.

Interest rates
throughout the term of the notes are in a range between 4.6% and 5.5%.
is secured by the future net revenues of the Utility.

The debt

(Continued)
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MUNTCIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

(5) Noncurrent Liabilities, Continued

The total debt service obligations over the remaining term of the notes are as

follows:

Principal Interest
Year Amount Amount
2005 5 245,000 $ 159,048
2006 255,000 147,532
2007 270,000 135,283
2008 285,000 122,062
2009 295,000 107,813
2010-2013 1,345,000 269,630
2014 380,000 20,900

$3,075,000 $ 962,278

The bond resolution provides certain covenants relating tec the collection,
segregation and distribution of revenues from customers; places gertain
restrictions on future borrowing and leasing or disposition of assets; and
requires that minimum insurance coverage be maintained.

The Board of Trustees of the Municipal Electric Utility authorized a loan to be
extended to the Utility under Resclutions No. 2759, 2840, 2939, 299%4, and 3086.
The December 31, 2004 and 2003 outstanding balances on this lcan weres $2,218,03C
and $2,403,090, respectively, bearing interest at 3.1%. The Board of Trustees of
the Municipal Electric Utility approved a loan be extended to the Utility under
Rescolution No. 3497. The December 31, 2004 and 2003 outstanding balances on this
loan were $875%,000 and 41,000,000, respectively, bearing interest at 3.1%.
Semiannual debt service payments are required on January 1 and July 1. Total debt
service requirements are as follows:

Principal Interest

Year Amount Amount
2005 $ 310,000 $ 98,151
2006 310,000 88,6890
2007 310,000 79,070
2008 310,000 65,552
2009-2013 1,300,000 208,940
2014-2016 553,080 43,840
$3,093,090 $586,233

(6} Pension Plan

The Utility contributes to the Iowa public Employees Retirement System {IPERS), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of Iowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits, which are
established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a
publicly available £inancial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report may be cbtained by writing IPERS,
P.0O. Box 95117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered salary and the
ptility is required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll. Contribution
requirements are established by State statute. The Utility’s contxibutions for
the vears ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $63,318; 567,282; and
$45,677; respectively, egqual to the required contributions for each year.

{Continued}
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MUNICTIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)}

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003
Income Tax Status

The Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes under the applicable tax
codes.

Related Party Transactions

The Utility uses a pooled cash account with affiliated utilities. Activity between
utilities that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements due to cash
overdrafts in certain affiliated utilities at the end of the year are referred as
vdue to/due from affiliated utilities*”. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the
Utility had a due to affiliated utilities of $-0- and §181,7792, respectively,
under this agreement.

The Utility provides cowmunications service to the City. Operating revenues from the
gservice provided amounted to $39,010 and $38,740 in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Outstanding lean balances from the Municipal Electric Utility are %3,093,090, and
$3,403,090 as of December 31, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Interest accrues o©of
the loan at 3.1%, and is paid semi-annually during January and July. Annual
principal payments continue through 2016 {see note 5). BAccrued interest payable
was 850,606 and $55,585 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Utility pays the Municipal Electric Utility, the Municipal Gas Utility and the
Municipal Water Utility a management fee for administration, £inance, human
resources and legal services as part of the program to equitably allocate
Communications costs. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Utility
recorded a management fee to the Municipal Electric Utility of $§67,510, the
Municipal Gas Utility of $20,800, and the Municipal Water Ueility of $1,690.

See note 5 for description of debt with the City. The interest paid tc the City was
$112,666 and $5135,126 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The accrued interest related to this debt was $8,582 and $9,38% at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Risk Management

The Cedar Falls Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities
(Utilities) are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets:; errors and omissions; injuries to employeses;
and natural disasters. The Utilities purchase commercial insurance for claims
related to these risks. The Utilities maintain a risk management account to
account for risks related to their self-funded medical insurance plan. The risk
management account provides employee health insurance coverage for the Utilities’
employees and participating retirees. The Utilities self-fund the first $60,000 of
claims per individual and $2,013,300 in aggregate for all participants and have
insurance for claims above this amount.

Liabilities of the risk management account are reported when it is prcobable that a
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Liabilities include an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNR} which represent estimates of the eventual loss on claims arising
prior to year-end. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past
two years are as follows:

2004 2003
Unpaid claims, beginning of year $ 112,350 § 181,700
Current year claims and changes in estimates 1,593,270 1,149,399
Claim payments {1,543,395) {1,218,749)
Unpaid claims, end of year § 162,225 $ 112,350

(Continued)
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IoWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2004 and 2003

{9) Risk Management, Continued

i0.

The Utility has recorded $19,467 and $11,235 in accounts payable for its share of
these unpaid claims at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. ~

The Utilities are a member of the Towa Municipalities Workers’ Compensation
asgociation {the Association), which was established to provide members a group
self-insurance program for their workers’ compensation liabilities. Approximately
470 governmental entities participate in the Association. A board of trustees
consisting of seven mwembers is elected by the members participating in the
Association to manage and conduct the business and affairs of the Association.

The following table sets forth summarized financial data of the Asscciation as of and
for its year ended June 30, 2004.

Cash and cash equivalents and investments $22,960,768
Receivables B14,103
Other assets 668,545

Total assets $24,443, 416
Total liabilities 18,559,769
Total egquity 5,883,647

Total liabilities and equity 524,443 4145
Total revenues 663,637
Total expenses 2,425,524
Distribution tc members -

Net decrease in equity $(1,761,887)

There have been no instances where the amount of settlement has exceeded available
coverage in the past three years. There has been no gsignificant reduction in
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year.

Subsequent Event

Effective January 1, 2005, the Board of Trustees approved a Cable TV rate

increase. The average rate increase 1s approximately 9.0% for all Basic Cable TV
customers, approximately 10.0 % Zor all Basic Plus (Cable TV customers, and

approximately 15.0% for Digital Cable TV customers. The Digital Cable TV rates were
alse restructured.

{Continued)
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Communications Utility

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Communications Utility of
Cedar Falls, Towa (the Utility), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, and have
issued our report thereon dated March 30, 2005. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa; and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required fo be
reporied under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted a certain immaterial instance of non-
compliance that is described in Part [T of the accompanying Schedule of Findings.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility’s operations for the year ended
Decernber 31, 2004, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
andit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not ail
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes. There were no prior year statutory comments and recommendations.

PEQPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
www.eidebailly.com
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by
error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of the Utility in a separate letter dated March 30, 2005. There were no prior year
reportable conditions.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and the customers of the Utility and other parties to whom the Utility may report.
This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of
the Utility during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the
above matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

CZ«M L7

Dubuqgue, lowa
March 30, 2005




CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES - MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor’s Results:

(a) An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements.

(b) No material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were noted.

(¢) The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financiel
statements.

Part II: Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting:

I1-A-04

11-B-04

1-C-04

II-D-04

[I-E-04

1I-F-04

11-G-04

1-H-04

11-1-04

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been approved by
the Utility’s Board of Trustees. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution
were not exceeded during the year ended December 31, 2004,

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2004, did not
exceed the amounts budgeted.

Questionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures that we believe may fail to
meet the requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion
dated April 25, 1979.

Travel Expense - No expenditures of Utility money for travel expenses of spouses of
Utility officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions - No business transactions between the Utility and Utility
officials or employees were noted.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Utility officials and employees is in
accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed
annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Board minutes but were not.

Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of Towa and the Utility’s
investment policy were noted.

Revenue Bonds - We noted no instances of non-compliance with the provisions of the
Utility’s revenue bond resolutions.



CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES ~ MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

[I-J-04  Notice of Public Hearing — Notice of public hearing for public improvements with a
total cost to the Utility of $25,000 or more is to be published not less than four nor
more than twenty days prior to the public hearing in accordance with Chapters 384.102
and 362.3 of the Code of Iowa. We noted several notices of public hearing that were
published more than twenty days prior to the public hearing,.

Recommendation — We recommend that the Utility examine the procedures in place
regarding publication of notice of public hearing to ensure that they are in compliance
with the requirements of the Code of Iowa in the future.

Response — We will change the process we have been using of counting clear days for
notices. Going forward, we will count calendar days but not include the day of
publication.

Conclusion — Response accepted.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falis Utilities — Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities

We have audited and reported separately herein on the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities —
Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of Cedar
Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities taken as a whole. The
supplementary information in the schedules noted on the table of contents is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our andit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

é",éﬁw% L7

March 30, 2005
Dubuque, lowa
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MUNTCTBAL ELECTRIC, GAS, WATER AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITIES

Of THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

(Compenent Units of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa}

Schedule of Insurance Coverage

(Unaudited-See accompanying accountants’ report)

December 31, 2004

Insurer and Policy Information

Towa Municipalities Workers Compensation Association

Worker's Compensation
Member No. 0480
Term 07-01-04/07-01-05

hcuity
Commercial Auto Liability

Policy No. FB89834
Term 01-01-05/01-01-C6

Associated Blectric & Gas Insurance Services Limited

Piduciary & Employee Benefit Liability

Policy No. FO432R1A05

Term 01-01-05/01-01-06

Includes a $200,000/occurrence self-retention

Excess General Liability
Policy No. X0432A1A05
Term 01-01-05/01-01-06

public Officials' Errors & Omissions Liability

Policy No. D0432AR1A05
Term G1-01-05/01-01-G6

West Bend Mutual Insurance Company

Commercial Property (2 Booster Stations)
Policy No. CPI044166804
Term 09-01-04/09-01-05

$

$

Schedule 1

Coverage

1,000,000/accident
1,000,000/employee

250,000

$10,000,000

$25,000,000/occurrence

510,000, 000/occurrence

$

226,000

{(Continued}



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC, GAS, WATER AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITIES
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

(Component Units of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)
Schedule of Insurance Coverage
(Unaudited-See accompanying accountants’ report)

December 31, 2004

Schedule 1
tnsurer and Policy Information Coverage

The Hartford Steam Boller Inspection and Insurance Co

Property $96,448,988

Inland Marine/Contractors Equipment 1,439,585

Policy No. STR4102045

Term 01-01-05/01-01-06

National Union Fire Insurance Co of Pittsburgh, PA

Crime s 500,000/occurence

Policy No. 009782599

Term 01-01-05/01-01-06

Zurich

Builders Risk {125 x 125 Building) § 1,500,000

Policy No. BR59B1L7723

Term 08-01-04/08-01-05

Towa Comprehensive Petroleum Underground Storage Tank

Financial Responsibility Program

Underground Storage Tanks S 500, 000/occurrence

Policy No. 8600572 1,000, 000/aggregate

Term 10-17-04/10-16-05

Management believes the current insurance program is adequate to protect bondholders from
losses, which can reasonably be anticipated. The schedule includes insurance coverage for
the Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities.

{Continued)



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC, GAS, WATER AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITIES
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

{Component Units of the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa)
Schedule of Insurance Coverage
(Unaudited-See accompanying accountants’ report)

December 31, 2004

Schedule 2

Electric Utility

Rates of the Electric Utility, as a municipal system, are not subject to lowa Utilities
Board regulation. Rates are established by a Board of Trustees, currently consisting of
Mark W. Baldwin, Chair; Pamela L. Taylor, Vice Chair; Richard A. Eades, Secretary; Roger
7. Kueter, member; Vilas L. Morris, member. The current electric rate tariff provides for
an energy cost adjustment factor, which reflects changes in the price of fuel used to
generate electricity and purchased power. Following are the basic monthly rates for
glectric service in effect for 2004.

Residential (Except Heating)

Customer charge $6.00

First 800 KWH 0.0660¢ per KWH

all over 800 KWH 0.0500¢ per KWH (Oct - May)
All over B0{0 XWH 0.0600¢ per KWH {June - Sept)
Minimum $6.00

Residential all-Electric Service

Customer charge $6.00

First 800 KWH 0.0650¢ per KWH

All over BOO KWH 0.0341¢ per KWH (Oct - May)
211 over BOO KWH 0.0650¢ per KWH (June -~ Sept)
Minimum $6.00

varm/Agricultural Service

Customer charge $8.00
First 50 KWH 0.1460¢ per XKWH
Next 150 KWH 0.0970¢ per KWH
Next 500 KWH 0.0720¢ per KWH
21l over 700 KWH 0.0550¢ per KWH
Minimum $8.00

Demand Space Heating Service

Cugtomer charge $£20.00

Demand charge

A1l KW of biliing demand $ 3.30 per KWH

Energy charge

First 180 hours use per month per XKW of billing demand $0.041¢ per XWH

Next 180 hours of use per month per KW of billing demand 0.032¢ per KWH

All over 360 hours use per month per KW of billing demand 0.032¢ per KWH {(June-Sept)
21l over 360 hours use per month per XKW of billing demand 0.026¢ per KWH (Oct-May)
Minimum the demand & customer charge

{Contipued)



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC, GAS, WATER AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITIES
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

{Compenent Units of the Qity of Cedar Falls, Iowa)
Rate Matters
(Unaudited-See accompanying accountants’ report)

December 31, 2004

Small Space Heating Service

Customer charge 86.00
All KWH 0.0345¢ pexr KWH
Minimum 56.00
General Service
Customer charge $20.00
First 4,000 KWH 0.0662¢ per KWH
Next 6,000 XKWH 0.0300¢ per KWH
2ll over 10,000 KWH 0.0427¢ per KWH

Large-Volume Power Service

Customer charge $1.00.00

Demand charge

First 1,000 KW of billing demand 4§ 3.90/KW/month
All over 1,000 KW of billing demand &  2.50/¥W/month
Energy charge

First 250 hours use per month per XKW of billing demand $ 0.040¢ per KWH
Next 110 hours use per month per XW of billing demand 0.033¢ per KWH
Over 360 hours use per month per KW of billing demand 0.027¢ per KWH
Minimum $275.00

Non-Profit/Governomental and Interdepartmental

Customer charge $10.00

All xwWi 0.0531¢ per KWH

Minimum $10.00

No sales tax
(1} The Roard of Trustees at their June 2, 1987, meeting approved an alectric
revenue adjustment credit of 0.6¢/XWH for this rate step for the billing months of October
through May. mhis credit will remain appiicable until further action is taken by the

Board of Trustees.

{2} The Board of Trustees at their June 2, 1987, meeting approved an electric revenue
adjustment credit of 0.3¢/KwWH for each energy block of this rate. This credit will
continue until further action is taken by the Board of Trustees.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003 the number of customer accounts was 16,970 and 16,738,
respectively.

(Continued)



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC, GAS, WATHER AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITIES
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

{Component Units of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)
Rate Matters
{Unaudited-See accompanying accountants’ report}

December 31, 2004

Gas Utility

Rates of the Gas Utility, as a municipal system, are not subject to Iowa Utilities Board
requlation. Rates are established by a Board of Trustees, currently comsisting of Mark W.
Baldwin, Chair; Pamela L. Taylor, Vice Chair; Richard A. Eades, Secretary; Roger A.
Kueter, member; Vilas L. Morris, menber. The current gas rate tariff provides for a
purchased gas adjustment factor, which reflects changes in the price of fuel purchased.
¥ollowing are the basic monthly rates for gas service in effect for 2004.

Residential Firm Service

Customer charge $10.00
First 2 MCF §.85 per MCF
All over 2 MCF 4.00 per MCF
Minimum $10.00

Smail-Volume Firm Service

Customer charge $15.75
First 5 MCF 5.50 per MCF
All over 5 MCF 4.40 per MCF
Minimum $15.75

Large-Volume Firm Service

Customer charge $15.75
First 5 MCF 5.00 per MCF
nll over 5 MCF 4.30 per MCF
Minimum $§15.75

Interruptible Commercial Service

Customer charge $27.64
All MCF 4.00 per MCF
Minimum $27.64

Large-Volume/High Load Factor Firm Service

Customer charge $109.49
311 MCF 3.41 per MCF
Mindmum 5109.45

Tndustrial Interruptible Service (Large-Volume)

Customer charge £109.49
All MCF 3.35 per MCPF
Minimum $109.49

Large-Volume Competitive Fuel Service

All MCF Variable with market



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC, GAS, WATER AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITIES
OF THE CITY CF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

(Component: Units of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)
Rate Matters
(Unaudited-See accompanying accountants’ report)
December 31, 2004
No minimum
Purchased gas adjustment to applicable

Tax Supported/Non Profit Institutional Service

Customer charge $27.05
All MCF 4 .25 per MCF
Minimum 527.05

Interdepartmental Service

Customer charge § 2.34
all MCF 3.62
Minimum § 2.34

Large-Volume Interruptible Service

Part l-Transportation cost 51,187.50/month
Part 2-Commodity cost Ventura Index Price
Part 3-Broker cost g 0.35/MCF
Minimum $1,187.50

Sales tax not applicable

Electric Generation & Steam Boiler Interruptible Serwice

All MCF billed at the current CFU gas acquisition cost, plus $0.10 per MCF
Minimum 8 0.00
Sales tax not applicable

Large-Volume Transportation Service

Customer charge $100.00
All volumes delivered 0.92 per MCF
Minimum G.00

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the number of customer accounts was 12,456 and 12,246,
respectively.

Water Utility

Rates of the Water Utility, as a municipal system, are not subject to Iowa Utilities Board
regqulation. Rates are established by a Board of Trustees, currently consisting of Mark W.
Baldwin, Chair; Pamela L. Taylor, Vice Chair; Richard A. =Rades, Secretary; Roger A.
Kueter, member; Vilas L. Moryxis, member.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003 the number of customer accounts was 11,407 and 11,133,
respectively.

(Continmued)



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC, GAS, WATER AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITIES
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

(Component Units of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)
Rate Matters
(Unaudited-See accompanying accountants’ report)

Decenber 31, 2004

Communications Utility

Rates of the Communications Utility, as a municipal system, are not subject to Iowa
Utilities Board regulation. Rates are established by a Board of Trustees, currently
consisting of Mark W. Baldwin, Chair; Pamela L. Taylor, Vice chair; Richard A. Eades,
Secretary; Roger A. Kueter, member; Yilas L. Morris, member.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003 the number of customer accounts was as foliows:

2004 2003
Cable television 7,977 7,890
Cable modem service 6,288 5,926

Commercial data service 13 12
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and
Communications Utilities (the Utilities) for the year ended December 31, 2004, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 30, 2005. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information
related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United
States of America and Government Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated January 13, 2005, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absohite, assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a
risk that material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Utilities. Such considerations were solely for the
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of the Utilities’ compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our tests was not to provide an opinion on compliance with such
provisions.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and
their application. The significant accounting policies used by the Utilities are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2004. We noted no transactions entered into by the Utilities during the year that were both significant and
unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
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Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was unbilled service revenue.

Management’s estimate of the unbilled service revenue is based on past history and billings generated after year
end. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the unbilled service revenue estimate in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Audit Adjustments

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction of the
financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our auditing procedures.
An audit adjustment may or may not indicate matters that could have a significant effect on the Utilities’ financial
reporting process (that is, cause future financial statements to be materially misstated). Audit adjustments were
made to adjust the receivables for unbilled service revenue in the Electric and Gas Utilities and to record an
allowance for funds used during construction in the Electric Utility.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion™ on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant
to check with us to determine that the consultant has al} the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Utilities” auditors, However, these discussions

occurred in the normal course of our professional refationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.



Other Comments

We have included additional comments regarding the financial statements and operations. These comments are not a
result of in-depth study of any specific areas but are based on observations made during the course of our audit. Our
observations indicate that overall financial operations of the Utilities continue to be conducted in an efficient and
effective manner.

This report, a public record by faw, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees, and
customers of Cedar Falls Utilities and other parties to whom the Utilities may report. This report is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

As always, we will be happy to discuss these or any other topics at your convenience. We would like to take this

opportunity to express our appreciation to you and your staff for the fine cooperation that we received during the
course of the audit. We look forward to many years of continued service to Cedar Falls Utilities.

éb,cﬁuz% Le7

Dubuque, Iowa
March 30, 2005
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Travel and Expense Reimbursement

During our review of expense reimbursement to employees and expenses charged to procurement cards owned by
Cedar Falls Utilities, it was noted that employees are not always following the Utilities” travel policy requiring all
expenses be supported by detailed receipts. In many instances, documentation supplied for meals consisted of
only a signed credit card receipt showing the total charge rather than a detail of the costs.

The policy also states that if an employee does not present receipts in support of an expense reimbursement
request or a charge to a procurement card that the employee must pay for the expense personally. We noted at
least one instance when an expense had no receipts to support it, but the cost was not reimbursed by the
employee.

Also, in this time of increased public scrutiny, it is especially important that a municipal entity monitor all of its
expenditures to ensure that they meet the criteria of public purpose. Areas that seem to be highly susceptible to
this scrutiny include things such as travel and training expenses, reimbursement for meals incurred when not
traveling out-of-town, expenses incurred under the heading of employee recognition and morale, and food
purchased for consumption within the place of business.

We recommend that the Utilities develop some form of communication and/or education for all employees and
board members informing them of the need to follow the existing travel and reimbursement policies. This
education should also include information regarding the public purpose criteria for all expenditures and the
importance of documenting that public purpose.

New Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued five statements not yet implemented by
Cedar Falls Utilities. The statements, which might impact the Utilities, are as follows:

Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, issued March 2003, will be effective for the Utilities
for the year ending December 31, 2005. This statement addresses common deposit and investment risks related to
credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk.

Statement No. 42, Aecounting and Financial Reporting for impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance
Recoveries, issued November 2003, will be effective for the Utilities for the year ending December 31, 2005. This
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for impairment of capital assets and also
clarifies and establishes accounting requirements for insurance recoveries.

Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, issued April
2004, will be effective for the Utilities for the year ending December 31, 2007. This statement establishes uniform
financial reporting standards for other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans and supersedes the interim guidance
included in Statement No. 26. This statement affects reporting by administrators or trustees of OPEB plan assets
or by employers or sponsors that include OPEB plan assets as trust or agency funds in their financial reports.
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Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, issued June 2004, will be effective for the Utilities for the year ending December 31, 2008. This
statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB expense/expenditures and
related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary information in the financial
reports of state and local governmental employers.

Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legisiation, issued December 2004, will be effective for the
Utilities for the year ending December 31, 2006. This statement clarifies the definition of a legally enforceable
enabling legislation restriction. It also specifies the accounting and financial reporting requirements for the
restrictions and for any changes in them.

The Utilities” management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the Utilities” financial
statements.



